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Barclays Capital Securities Limited

Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited financial statements of Barclays Capital
Securities Limited(the ‘Company’)for the year ended 31 December2019.

Profit and dividends

The results of the Company show profit after tax of £109m (2018: £109m) and total income of £408m (2018:
£437m). The Company has net assets of £1,125m (2018: £1,320m). Interim dividends of £100m and £150m were
paid on 27 August 2019 and 20 December 2019 respectively for the year 2019 (2018: Nil). The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2019 (2018: Nil).

Post balance sheet events

The contractual guarantee from Barclays Bank Plc to the Company which covers credit exposures arising from
Counterparty Credit risk ranked by risk weighted amount, with a limit of £1 as of 31 December 2019 had been
increased to £500m on 3 March 2020 and subsequently to £1.5bn and £2.0bn on 17 March 2020 and 31 March
2020respectively.

The Company ismonitoringthe potential downside risk associatedwith both the direct and indirect impact of
the Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak. The Company continues to operate within its risk and capital limits which
are being actively monitored by management.

On11 March 2020 it was announced (and substantively enacted on 17 March 2020) that the UK corporationtax
rate would remain at 19% and not reduce to 17% (the previously enacted rate) from 1 April 2020. The deferred
tax balancesincluded within the accounts have been calculated with reference to the rate of 17%, as required
under IFRS. However, followingthe substantive enactment of the rate of 19%, itis anticipated that the reversa
of temporary differences will occur at this rate and that the maximum impact on the quantum of net deferred
tax liability recognised is assessed to be immaterial.

There wereno otherim portantévents affecting the Company which have occurred since 31 December2019.
Directors

The Directors of the Company, who served during the year 2019 and up to the date of signing the financia
statements, are as shown below:

Michael Ashley — Non-Executive Director and Board Audit Committee Chairman
Tim Breedon — Non-Executive Director and Board Risk Committee Chairman
Helen Keelan - Non-Executive Director

Steven Ewart - Chief Financial Officer

Stephen Dainton - Chief Executive Officer

Sir Gerry Grimstone ~ Non-Executive Director (resigned 28 February 2019)

Corporate Governance Statement

The Board aspires to have high standards of corporate governance and, in accordance with The Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, has set out below the corporate governance arrangements it
deems most appropriateto apply.

In line with other subsidiaries in the Barclays PLC Group (‘Barclays Group’), we have chosen not to adopt and
report against the revised 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, which is designedfor premiumlisted companies
and, whilst we fully support the introduction of the Wates Corporate Govemance Principles for Large Private
Companies (in particular the focus on purpose, culture and employee and stakeholder engagement), we feel
they are less appropriate for a wholly-owned subsidiary of a premium listed company which is also a complex
financial institution subject to a comprehensive regulatory regime. We have therefore adopted our own
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corporate governance principles and arrangements which we believe are most appropriate for the Company,
and are designedto ensure effective decisionmakingto promote the Company’s success for the fong term.

Our primary aim is that our govemance:

is effective in providing challenge, advice and support to management;

e provideschecksandbalances, and encourages constructive challenge;

e drivesinformed, collaborative and accountable decision-making and

e createslong-term sustainable value for our shareholder, the uitimate shareholders of Barclays and our
wider stakeholders. '

Set out below are the principles which underpin our corporate governance arrangements and how these
principleshave been applied during 2019.

Our group-wide governance framework is set by Barclays and has been designed to facilitate the effective
management of the Barclays Group. This includes the setting of Barclays Group policies in relation to matters
such as Barclays’ values, Barclays’ Remuneration Policy and the Barclays’ Charter of Expectations. Where
appropriate, this Corporate Govemnance Statement makes reference to those Barclays Group policies whichare
relevant to the way in which the Company is governed.

Our corporate govemance principles and how the Company has applied them during 2019

Principle One: Board Leadership and Company Purpose

A successful company isled by an effective and entrepreneurial board whose role is to establish the company’s
purpose, values and strategy, aligned toits culture, and make decisions to promote its success for the long term
benefit ofits shareholder, having regard to the interests of other relevant stakeholders and factors.

® Through the leadership of the Board, a clear vision for the Company’s purpose and overall values is
articulated, underpinning and defining the strategy and culture of the organisation. This is embedded at
every level of management.

e Cultureremainsacore areaof focus with the Board actively promoting ethical leadership and accountability
whilst supporting and reinforcingthe Barclays’ Code of Conduct, the Barclays Way, and the Barclays Values,
to achieve adynamic and positive culture.

Principle Two: Division of Responsibilities

An effective board requires a clear division of responsibilities with the Chair leading the board and being
responsible for its overall effectiveness, and the executive leadership of the company’s business being
delegated to the Chief Executive. The board should consist of an appropriate combination of executive and
independent non-executive directors each with a clear understanding of their accountability and
responsibilities. The board’s policies and procedures should support effective decisionmaking and independent
challenge.

e Cleardivision of responsibilities between the Chair and Chief Executive documented by the Company.

e Policies and protocols are in place to support effective decision-making and independent challenge
including: the Barclays Group’s corporate govemance manual setting out clearly how the Bardays Group
entities and their respective boards and board committees should interact and Barclays’ Charter of
Expectations, settingout clearly therole and responsibilities of each Director

e Board duties are executed in part through Board Committees — Board Audit Committee, Board Risk
Committee, Board Remuneration Committee and Board Nominations Committee-which provide oversight
and make recommendations on the matters delegated to themby the Board.
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* Appropriate informationand support is provided to the Board to enable themto undertake their work with
due care and discharge theirresponsibilities.

Principle Three: Composition, Succession and Evaluation

A board with the right balance of skills, experience and diversity is critical to the sustainable delivery of value
tothe company’s shareholder and broader stakeholders. The size of the board should be guided by the scale
and complexity of the company and appointments should be based on merit and objective criteriaand with a
view to promotingdiversityand subjectto a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure whichis underpinned
by an effective succession plan for board and senior management. A successful board is a cohesive board that
providesinformed and constructive challenge to the management team and measures its effectiveness.

e The size and composition of the Board is appropriate to alarge UK Investment Firm (the principal activities
of which are outlined on page 9). A good balance exists between Executive and Non-Executive Directors
who bring a strong combination of technical, finance (including significant financial services experience),
risk and audit experience. In addition, the independent non-executive directors bring independent
challenge. The BCSL Board is composed of Michael Ashley (Chair, Non-Executive Director), Tim Breedon
(Non-Executive Director), Helen Keelan (Non-Executive Director), Stephen Dainton (Chief Executive
Officer) and StevenEwart (Chief Financial Officer).

e All appointments to the Board and senior management are based on merit and objective criteria with a
strong acknowledgement of the benefits of diversity(gender, ethnicity and thought)for an effective Board
and organisation. Diversity will remain akey areaof focus. Further detail, including on the Barclays Group
Board Diversity Policy, can be foundin the Barclays PLC Annual Reportand Accounts 2019.

e During the year, the Board appointed Michael Ashley as Chair of the Board, replacing Sir Gerry Grimstone.

e During the year, consideration was given to the composition of the Board to ensure continued
effectiveness, and it was agreed that existing Board composition would remainin place. A review of the
Board’s effectiveness will be undertaken during 2020 in accordance with Barclays Group Policy on Lega
Entitiesand Directors.

Principle Four: Audit, Risk and Internal Control

The board should establish formal and transparent policies and procedures to (i) identify the nature and extent
of principal risks the company is willing to take inorderto achieveits long-termstrategic objectives; (i) manage
such risks effectively; (iii) oversee the internal control framework; (iv) promote the independence and
effectiveness of internal and external audit functions; and (v) satisfy itself on the integrity of financia
reporting.

* Principalrisks have beenidentified, as articulated on pages 10413, with robust processes in place to evaluate
and manage such risks; including regular reporting to, and oversight by, the Board Risk Committee and the
Board.

¢ The Board approves, within the parameters set by Barclays PLC, the Company’s risk appetite; thelevel of risk
the Companyis preparedto acceptacross different risk types.

* Effectiveness of risk management and intemal controls is reviewed regularly by the Board Risk Committee
(with responsibility for providing oversight on current and potential future risk exposures) and the Board
Audit Committee (with responsibility for controls, including reviewing audit reports, internal controls and risk
managementsystems).

* The Board Audit Committee continues to provide its oversight of financial reporting processes and the work
of the extemal and intemnal auditors (induding independence and effectiveness).
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Principle Five: Remuneration

Remuneration policies and practices should support strategy and promote long-term sustainable success, and
be developed in accordance with formal and transparent procedures, ensuring no director is involved in
deciding their own remuneration outcome. Executive remuneration should be aligned to the company’s
purpose and values and the successful delivery of the strategy; with outcomes takingaccount of company and
individual performance, and wider circumstances such as pay across the company’s workforce and Barclays’
Fair Pay agenda.

» Barclays’Remuneration Policyis set by the Barclays Group Remuneration Committee, and adopted by the
Company’s independent Board Remuneration Committee. This policy is applied to all employees of the
Barclays Group, including those carrying out work for the Company, though the Company does not have
any employees as of 31 December 2019. As the executive directors of the Board are not employed by the
Company, and carry out their duties in addition to their roles for BBPLC, the section of the remuneration
principle above relatingto the alignment of executive remuneration to the Company’s purpose, values and
delivery of the strategy does not apply to the Company. )

» Remuneration approaches for those on the Board or Executive Committee of the Companyare developed
in accordance with the Barclays Group’s formal and transparent procedures (ensuring no director is
involved in deciding their own remuneration outcome) and having regard to workforce remuneration
policies and alignment of incentives and rewards with culture and performance as reviewed annually by
the Barclays Group Remuneration Committee.

Principle Six: Stakeholder relationships and engagement

Directors should foster effective stakeholder relationships aligned to the Company’s purpose. The board
should recognise theimportance of listening to, and understanding the views of its stakeholders, including the
workforce, and specifically the impact of the company’s behaviour and business on customers and clients,
colleagues, suppliers, communities and society morebroadly; having regard to these views and impact when
taking decisions.

e Through the Company’s defined purpose and strategy, key stakeholders on whom the success of the
Company depends are identified. Please see pages 9-10 of the Strategic Report for detail of our key
stakeholders.

e The Board seeks to understand key stakeholder’s views, and the impact of the Company’s behaviour on
them. Detail on how we engaged with our stakeholders in 2019, and the link between stakeholder
managementandkey decisionsis set out in the section 172(1) statement on page 9 of the Strategic Report.

» The Board monitorskeyindicators acrossareas such as culture and conduct on a continuing and ongoing
basis.

Going concern

After reviewingthe Company's performance projections (including theimplications of the UK’s decision to leave
the European Union and from the COVID-19 outbreak), the available banking facilities and taking into account
the support available from Barclays Bank Plc and the abilityand intent of Barclays Bank Plcto continue to provide
support to the Company, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate access to resources to
enable it to meet its obligations and to continuein operational existence for the foreseeablefuture. In addition
to the intemal stress testing scenario, this review included reference to an additional stress testing scenario with
severity of downside stresses aligned to the stress experiencedin Q1 2020, effectively assuming further market
deterioration of similar magnitude. Consequently, the Directors have adopted the going concern basis in
preparing these financial statements.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financia
statementsin accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU) and applicable [aw.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

e selectsuitable accounting policies and thenapply them consistently;
e make judgements and estimatesthatare reasonable, relevantandreliable;
e state whetherthey have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs asadopted by the EU;

e assess the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern; and

e use the going concem basis of accounting unless they either intend toliquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have norealistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have genera
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably opento them to safeguard the assets of the company and
to prevent and detect fraud and other imregularities.

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks. The Company is required to follow the
requirements of the Barclays Group risk management policies, which include specific guidelines on the
managementof foreign exchange, interestrate and creditrisks, and advice on the use of financial instruments
to manage them. The main financial risks that the Company is exposed to are outlinedin Note 29.

Directors’ third party indemnity provisions

Qualifying third-party indemnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) werein force
during the course of the financial year ended 31 December 2019 for the benefit of the then Directors and, at the
date ofthisreport, arein force forthe benefit of the Directorsin relation to certainlosses and liabilities, including
qualifying third party indemnity provisions and qualifying indemnity provisions which may occur (or have
occurred)in connection with their duties, powers or office.

Environment

Barclays focuses on addressing environmental issues where we believe we have the greatest potential to make
a difference. We focus on managing our own carbon footprint and reducing our absolute carbon emissions,
developing products and services to help enable the transition to alow carbon economy, and managing the riss
of climate change to our operations, clients, customersand society at large.
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We invest inimproving the energy efficiency of our operations and offset the emissions remaining through the
purchase of carbon credits. We also have along-standing commitment to managing the environmental and socia
risks associated with our lending practices, which isembedded into our risk processes. A governance structure
is in place to facilitate clear dialogue across the business and with suppliers around issues of potentia
environmental and social risk.

Disclosure of global greenhouse gas emissionsis prepared at a Barclays Group level with informationavailable
in the Barclays PLC 2019 Annual Report with fuller disclosure available on our website

at https://home.barclays/citizenship/

Engagement with customers, suppliers and others in a business relationship with the Company

Customers and clients are central to the Barclays business — without them, Barclays would not exist. Barclays
works hard to understand the needs of its customers and clients to inform and improveits products and services.
Barclays engages with them in a variety of ways, including conducting a wide-range of customer and client
research; using the invaluable insight to inform and improve Barclays products and services.

Barclays supply chain helps it deliver for all its customers, clients and stakeholders. Barclays engages with its
suppliers through its contractual arrangements and requirements to ensure suppliers adhere to the Barclays
Supplier Code of Conduct and Supply Control Obligations through pre-contract attestation. From such
engagementsuppliers haveidentified prompt payment as critical. Barclaysis a signatory to the Prompt Payment
Code inthe UK, committing to pay its suppliers within clearly defined terms. Please see page 34 of the Barclays
PLC Annual Report 2019 for detail on Barclays’ supplier on-time payment by value performance in 2019.

Further detail on Barclays’ customer, client and supplier engagement is set out on pages 14 to15 and page
33 of the Barclays PLC Annual Report 2019.
Pillar 3 disclosures

In accordance with the rules of the Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential Regulation Authority, the
Company’s parent, Barclays Bank PLC and its ultimate parent Barclays Plc has published information onitsrisk
managementobjectives and policies and onits regulatory capital requirements and resources. Thisinformation
is available at: https://home.barclaysfinvestorrelations/reports-and-events/annual-re

Creditors’ payment policy

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of financial services. It does not have trade creditors and
as such the disclosure of the creditor’s payment policy is not applicable.

Independent Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG
LLP will therefore continuein office.

Statement of disclosure of information to the auditor

So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's Auditors are
unaware. The Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit informationand to establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of
that information.
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FORAND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Steven Ewart
Director
23 April 2020

Company Number 1929333
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Businessreview and principal activities

The principal activities of the Company include the provision of Equity Financing, Equity Derivatives, Cash
Equitiesand Agency Execution Services.

Business performance

The results of the Company show profit after tax of £109m (2018: £109m) and total income of £408m (2018:
£437m).The Company hasnet assets of £1,125m (2018: £1,320m).

Business environment

The economic conditions of 2019 continued to provide a challenging context for banking and financing activity.
Featuressuch asthe low interest rate environment, the UK’s withdrawal from the EU and global trade tensions
combined to dampen and delay deal activity, particularly primary issuance. That meant the global Markets
revenue pool shrank by 2%2. The company remains vigilant to these risks and their potential impact on global
trade and investment. The Company’s activities are authorised and regulated by the Prudential Regulation
Authority (‘PRA’)and the Financial Conduct Authority(‘FCA’).

The evolving operating environment presents opportunities and risks which we continue to evaluate to ensure
that we appropriately adapt our strategy andits delivery.

3 Source: Coalition FY19vs FY18 Preliminary Competitor Analysis of total industry revenue pool

Strategy and future outlook

The Company operates within a complex group structure where streamlining activities and improving efficiencies
across the Barclays Group is a key priority, for both the Company and the wider Group management, &
regulatory change comesinto effect. The Companywill continueto reviewits strategy in line with the Barclays
Group strategic objectives. The Company’s overriding objective is to provide its clients with well-constructed and
appropriate solutions to their requirements. The Company will continue to focus on geographies and products
where it has competitive advantage. During the year, the Company surrendered its license and closed its
representative office in Shanghai as it was not used.

Section 172(1) statement

The Directorshave actedin away that they considered, in good faith, to be most likely to promote the success
of Barclays Capital Securities Limited for the benefitof its member, and in doing so had regard, amongst other
matters, to:

= thelikely consequencesof any decision in the long term;

» the needtofoster the Company’s business relationships withsuppliers, customers and others;

» theimpact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment; and

» the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
* theneedtoact fairly asbetween members of the Company.

The Directors also took into account the views and interests of a wider set of stakeholders, including our
regulators, the Govemment, and non-government organisations. You can find out more about who Barclays’ key
stakeholders are, how they’ve been engaged with, the key issues raised and actions taken on pages 16 to17 of
the Barclays PLC Annual Report 2019 whichisincorporated by referenceinto this statement.

Considering this broad range of interestsis an important part of the way the Board makes decisions, although in
balancing those different perspectivesit will not always be possible to deliver everyone’s desired outcome.
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How does the Board engage with stakeholders?

The Board will sometimes engage directly with certain stakeholders on certain issues, but the size and
distribution of our stakeholders and of the Company meansthat stakeholder engagement often takes place at
an operational level. :

In addition, to ensure amore efficient and effective approach, certain stakeholder engagement isled at Barclays
Group level, in particular where matters are of group-wide significance or have the potential to impact the
reputation of the Barclays Group.

The Board considers and discusses information fromacross the organisationto help it understand theimpact of
the Company’s operations, and the interests and views of our keystakeholders. It also reviews strategy, financia
and operational performance as well as information covering areas such as key risks, and legal and regulatory
compliance. Thisinformation is provided to the Board throughreports sent in advance of each Board meeting,
and through in-person presentations.

As aresult of these activities, the Board has an overview of engagement with stakeholders, and other relevant
factors, which enables the Directors to complywith theirlegal dutyunder section 172 of the Companies Act 2006.

The following is an example of how the Directors have had regard to the matters set outin sections 172 (1{f)
when discharging their section 172 duties and the effect of that on certain ofthe decisions taken by them.

Engagement in action

Mitigating Customer Impact

In reviewing Barclays’ plans for the Barclays Group in the context of the planned UK withdrawal from the
European Union, the Board received regular updates on the business transfers into Barclays Bank Ireland PLC
and considered how to minimise the resultantimpacts on a range of stakeholders including customers and
clients, colleagues and suppliers. The Board’s decisionto use a banking business transfer scheme (under part Vil
of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000) gave the Directors the flexibility to overseekey decision points
inline with developments in the political environmentin order to minimise unnecessary disruption to customers
and clients.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the execution of the Company’s strategy are exposed to anumber of risks.
These risks are formally reviewed by the Board and appropriate processes put in place to monitor and mitigate
them.

Material existing and emerging risks potentially impacting more than one Principal Risk
Business conditions, general economy and geopolitical issues

The Company’s operations are subject to potentially unfavourable global and local economic and market
conditions, as well as geopolitical developments, which may have amaterial effecton the Company’s business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

A deterioration in global or local economic and market conditions may lead to (amongst other things): (i)
deteriorating business, consumer or investor confidence, which in turn may lead to lower client activity; (i)
subdued asset pricesincluding the value of any collateral held by the Company; and (jii) mark-to-market losses
in trading portfolios resulting from changes in factors such as credit ratings, share prices and solvency of
counterparties.

10
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Geopolitical events may lead to further financial instability and affect economic growth. In particular:

e The decision of the UK to leave the EU may give rise to further economic and political consequences,
including for investment and market confidence in the UK and the remainder of the EU.

e Global GDP growth weakened in 2019, as elevated policy uncertainty weighed on manufacturingactivity
and investment. As a result, a number of central banks, most notably the Federal Reserve and the
European Central Bank (ECB), pursued monetary easing. Whilst the direct and indirectimpact of the
COVID-19 outbreak remains uncertain, a number of central banks and governments have announced
financial stimulus packages in anticipation of a very significant negative impact on GDP during 2020.
Concernsremain asto whether these policy tools will counteranticipated macro-economic risks and a
prolongation of the outbreak could significantly adversely affect economic growth, affect specific
industries or countries or affect the Company’s business operations and services it receives from the
Barclays Group. in addition, an escalation in geopolitical tensions, increased use of protectionist
measures or adisorderly withdrawal by the UK from the EU may also negativelyimpact the Company’s
businessin affected regjons.

Material existing and emerging risks impacting individual Principal Risks

e Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from potential adverse changes in the value of the Company’s assets and
liabilities from fluctuation in market variables including, but not limited to, interest rates, foreign exchange,
equity prices, dividend expectation, credit spread, implied volatilities and asset correlations. The Company incurs
market risk via trading activities with clients and via the liquid assets that the Company holds. The Company
manages the risk through arange of complementary approachesto identify and evaluate marketrisk. These are
measured, limited and monitored by market risk specialists.

e (Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to the Company from the failure of clients, customers or counterparties including
sovereigns, to fully honour their obligations to the Companyincluding the whole and timely payment of principd,
interest, collateral and other receivables. Credit risk also arises through downgrading of counterparties whose
credit instruments the Company may be holding, causing the value of those assets to fall. The Company employs
arange of risk measurement techniques and methodologies to mitigate creditrisk.

e Liquidityrisk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company’s cash and committed facilities may be insufficient to meet its
contractual or contingent obligations or that it does not have the appropriate amount, tenor and composition
of funding and liquidity to support its assets. The Company maintains a mixture of long term and short term
committed facilities including financial support from its parent, Barclays Bank Plc, that are designed to ensure
the Company has sufficient available funds for operations.

The Company is part of a Domestic Liquidity Sub-Group (DoLSub) for Liquidity Management requirements under
the European Capital Requirements Directive (CRDIV)and the European Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR).
The DolSub arrangement constitutes Barclays Bank Plc and Barclays Capital Securities Limited. Barclays has
obtained an extension until 30 June 2021 to the waiver from the PRA to supervise both entities as a single
Liquidity Sub-Groupon the back of a Liquidity Credit Support agreementthat allows the free movement of funds
between the two entities, enablingthemto meet their individual and joint obligations as they become due. Asa
result of the DoLSub arrangement, any risksto the liquidity position of Barclays Bank PLC are also adirect riskto
the Company. This agreement givesrise to potential contingent liabilities albeit not quantifiable and hence not
disclosed separately.

1"
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e Operationalrisk

Operational riskis therisk of loss to the Company frominadequate or failed processes or systems, human factors
or due to external events(e.g. fraud or cyber risk) where the root cause is not due to credit or marketrisk The
company’s businesses are dependent on the ability to process a large number of transactions efficiently and
accurately. The Company has outsourced operational activities within the Company to other Barclays Group
entities including the Group Service Company. These outsourced activities are managed through various intra-
group service agreements betweenBarclays Bank Plc and the Group Service Company, in whichthe Companyis
a service beneficiary. The Company continues to be accountable for the risk arising from the actions of the
outsourced activities. Failure to adequately manage outsourcing risk through control environments which
remain robust to ever changing threats and challenges couldresult inincreased losses, inability to performcritical
economic functions, client detriment, potential regulatory censure and penalty, legal liability and reputational
damage. The Company assessesits risk and control environment acrossits functions with a view to maintaining
an acceptable level of residual risk.

e Capital and Regulatoryrisk

Capital risk is the risk that the Company has an insufficient level or composition of capital to support its normal
business activities and to meet its regulatory capital requirements under normal operating environments or
stressed conditions. Rules dictating the measurement of capital may be tightened which would constrain the
Company’s planned activities and contribute to adverse impacts on the Company’s earnings.

Regulatory risk arises from a failure or inability to comply fully with the laws, regulations or codes applicable
specifically to the financial servicesindustry. Non-compliance could lead to fines, public reprimands, damage to
reputation, increased prudential requirements, enforced suspension of operations or, in extreme cases,
withdrawal of authorisationsto operate.

To meet regulatory provisions by the PRA affecting capital adequacy and large exposures reporting, the
Company has the followingin place as at 31 December2019:

- A contractual guarantee of £1bn from Barclays Bank Plc to cover creditexposures arising from Counterparty
Credit risk. The guarantee covers large exposures which arein excess of 23% of the company’s eligible capital
relevant for limits to large exposures. This guarantee will remainin effect until terminated by either of the
partiesto the guarantee by providing 30 business days’ notice in writing to the other party.

- A contractual guarantee from Barclays Bank Plc to cover credit exposures arising from Counterparty Credit
risk ranked by risk weighted amount. The guaranteelimitis set to £1 and can be amended from time to time
with agreement between both parties. This guarantee will remain in effect until terminated by either of the
parties to the guarantee by providing 30 business days’ notice in writing to the other party. The guarantee
limit had been increased to £500mon 3 March 2020 and subsequently to £1.5bn and £2.0bn on 17 March 2020
and 31 March 2020 respectively.

- A contractual guarantee from Barclays Bank Plc to cover secured financing transactions to non-core intemal
large exposures which are in excess of the company’s eligible capital relevant for limits to large exposures.
The main exposures to which this guarantee relates to are Barclays Capital Inc, Barclays Securities Japan
Limited and Barclays Bank ireland Plc. The guarantee limit is set to £1 and can be amended from time to time
with agreement from both parties. Bardays Bank Plc may terminate this guarantee at any time by providing
30 business days’ notice in writing.

- A contractual guarantee of £1.5bn from Barclays Bank Plc to cover exposure with Barclays Capita
Luxembourg Sarl for stockloan transactions. Barclays Bank Plc may terminate this guarantee at any time by
providing 30 business days’ notice in writing.

12
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- Floating rate perpetual subordinated write down securities (AT1 securities) issued for £200m on 22 August
2019, which are includedwithin additional Tier1 capital;

- Asubordinated loan agreement with Barclays Bank Plc comprising debt of €17m and US$24.5m, which are
included within Tier2 capital;

- Subordinated callable notes of £150missued on 22 August 2019 and £150m issued on 19 December 2019, which
are included withinTier2 capital.

The Company’s capital management strategy is to continue to maximise shareholder value by prudently
optimising both the level and composition of its capital resources.

The Company’s capital management objectives are to:

- Maintain sufficient capital resourcesto support the Company’s risk appetite.
- Maintain sufficient capital resources to meet the PRA’s minimum regulatory capital ratios.

External Regulatory Capital Requirements

. The Company issubject to the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR)and Capital Requirements Directive (CRD)
implementation of Basel 3 within the EU (collectively known as CRD IV) on 1 January 2014. The rules are
supplemented by the Regulatory Technical Standards and the PRA’s rulebook, including the implementation of
the transitional rules. Rules and guidance are still subject to change as certain aspects of CRD [V are dependent
onfinal technical standards and clarifications to be issued by the European Banking Authority(EBA) and adopted
by the European Commission and the PRA. All capital and risk weighted assets (RWAs) calculations reflect the
Company’sinterpretation of the current rules.

The Company has been granted approval by the PRA to adopt advanced approaches for computing credt,
market and operational risk capital requirements. The Company uses ‘The Standardised Approach’ (TSA) for
operational risk regulatory capital purpose with effect from 1 April 2018, based on PRA approval. Pillar 1 capita
requirements are generated using the Company’s risk models together with standardised calculations. :

in December 2017, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) finalised Basel 3 eliminating the model
based approaches for certain categories of RWAs (for example, operational risk RWAs, CVA volatility and credit
risk RWAs for equity exposures), revised the standardised approach’s risk weights for a number of exposure
categories, replaced the four existing approaches for operational risk (including the advanced measurement
approach) with a single standardised measurement approach and established 72.5% of standardised approach
RWAs for exposure categories as a floor for RWAs calculated under the advanced approaches(referredto asthe
“output floor™).

The majority of the final Basel 3 changes are expected to be implemented commencing 1 January 2022, with a
five-year phase-in period for the output floor and with asingle Standardised Measurement Approach.

CRDIV Capital ratios

The current regulatory requirement is to meet a fully loaded CRD IV CET1 ratio comprising the required 4.5%
minimum CET1ratio and Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) of 2.5%.

Also forming part of the Buffer requirementis the Counter-Cyclical Capital Buffer (CCyB) and the Systemic Risk
Buffer (SRB). The Company’s CCyB is based on the buffer rate applicable for each jurisdiction in which the
Company has exposures. On 28 November 2018, the Financial Policy Committee (FPC) set the CCyBrate for UK
exposures at 1%. The buffer rates set by other national authorities for non-UK exposures are currently not
material. Overall, thisresultsin a 0.29% CCyB for the Companyas at 31 December2019. On 11 March 2020, the FPC
reduced the CCyB for UK exposures to 0% withimmediate effect and this has the effect of reducing the CGyB
requirement from 0.29%to 0.11%based on 31 December2019 position. No SRB has been set to date.

The Company’s Pillar 2A requirement for 2019, based on a point in time assessment, was equal to 3.84% of which
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56% needsto be met with CET1 capital, equating to approximately 2.2% of the RWAs. The Company’s 2019 Pillar
2A add-on was reduced from 4.5% to 3.8% effective 31 October 2019 with2.2% of RWAs needingto be met in CET1
form. All capital and RWA calculationsreflect the Company’sinterpretations of the current rules.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s CET1 ratio was 15.8% (2018: 13.4%) which exceeds the 2019 minimum
requirement of 9.45% including the minimum 4.5% of CET1requirement, 2.16% of Pillar 2A requirement, a 2.5% ((B
buffer and a 0.29% CCyB buffer.

The table below provides details of the Company’s CRD IV transitional capital ratios, capital resources and RWAs
at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

2019 2018
Risk weighted assets (in£'000) 5,409,563 7,610,066
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 15.8% 13.4%
Tier 1 capital ratio 19.5% 14.1%
Total capital ratio 25.2% 16.9%

The Company’s Total capital ratio increased to 25.2% (2018:16.9%), as a result of a 29% decrease in RWAs to
£5,410m and 6% increase in total capital primarily due to AT1and subordinated debt capital issued during 2019.
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Key performance indicators
The Board of Directors monitors progress on the overall strategy by reference to profit after tax as a key
performance indicator. The financial performance metrics are aimed at generating long term sustainablereturns

Total income decreased by 6% to £408m from 2018. Total operating expenses decreased by 6% to £220m from
2018. Profit after tax remained stable at £109m (2018: £109m).

FOR ANDON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Steven Ewart
Director

23 April 2020
Company Number 1929333
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of
Barclays Capital Securities Limited

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Barclays Capital Securities Limited (“the company”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 which comprisethe Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial

Position, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows and related notes, including the
significant accountingpolicies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give atrue andfair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December2019and of its profit for the
year then ended;

e havebeen properly preparedin accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union; and

e havebeen preparedin accordance with therequirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”") and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and
are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’s financia
position meansthat this is realistic. They have also concluded thatthere are no material uncertainties that could
have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the financial statements (“the going concem period”).

We arerequiredtoreport to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that
basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In ourevaluation of the
directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’s business model, and analysed how
those risks might affect the company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going
concern period. We have nothing to reportin theserespects.

However, aswe cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of
referenceto amaterial uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the company will continuein
operation.

Strategic report and directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the financid
statements does not coverthose reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of
Barclays Capital Securities Limited

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether,
based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent
with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

e we have not identified material misstatementsin the strategicreport and the directors’report;

¢ in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financia
statements; and

¢ inouropinionthose reportshave beenpreparedin accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on whichwe are required toreport by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to youif, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have notbeen kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branchesnot visited by us; or

e the financial statementsare not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certaindisclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

e thedirectorswerenot entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption fromthe requirement
toprepare astrategicreport

We have nothing toreportin theserespects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 2, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such intemal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from materia
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unlessthey eitherintend to liquidate the companyor to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to
do so.

Auditor’sresponsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expectedto
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is providled on the FRCs  website

at www .frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of
Barclays Capital Securities Limited

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Thisreport ismade solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to themin an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than thecompany and the
company’s members, as abody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

R, Fallepos
"

Richard Faulkner (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E145GL

23 April 2020
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Income Statement for theyear ended 31 December 2019

Figures in Pounds Sterling thousand Note 2019 2018
Continuing operations:

Net interest expense 4 (2,897) (1,000)
Net fee and commissionincome 5 57,758 90,398
Net trading Income 6 353425 347,256
Totalincome 408,286 436,654
Creditimpairment release [(charges) 7 103 (44)
Net operating income 408,389 436,610
Operating expenses 8 (220,348) (233,519)
Profit before tax 188,041 203,091
Taxation 10 (78,661) (93,755)
Profit after tax 109,380 109,336
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be recycled to profit or

loss

Currency translationreserve - (1)
Total comprehensive incomefor the year attributable to equity holders of 109,380

the Parent

109,335

Allrecognised gains and losses are includedin the Statement of Comprehensive income.

The accompanying notes from pages 24 to 75 form anintegral part of the financial statements.
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited

Statement of Financial Position as at 3t December 2019

Figuresin Pounds Sterling thousand Note 2019 2018
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 763,458 582,345
Trading portfolio assets 12 19,901,033 12,389,627
Derivative financial instruments 13 5,536,462 6,813,352
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 15 33,482,118 30,477,198
Loans and other receivables at amortised cost 16 33,472,462 34,699,163
Other assets 17 116,229 161,266
93,271,762 85,122,951
Non-current assets
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 15 500,432 382,751
Loans and other receivables at amortised cost 16 50,625 11,651
Deferredtax assets 18 . 746
Investments in subsidiaries 19 - -
_ 551,057 395,148
Total assets 93,822,819 85,518,099
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trading portfolio liabilities 12 10,868,481 12,647,799
Derivative financial instruments 13 7,028,111 7,316,936
Repurchase agreements at amortised cost 14 7,522,208 -
Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair value 20 39,923,586 30,215,407
Borrowings 21 25,467,177 25,782,155
Other liabilities 22 326,356 253,096
Current tax liabilities 23 3,856 5,639
91,139,775 76,221,032
Non-current liabilities
Repurchase agreements at amortised cost 14 - 7,028,049
Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair value 20 813,872 784,178
Borrowings 21 743,409 164,477
Deferredtax liabilities 18 471 -
1,557,752 7,976,704
Total liabilities 92,697,527 84,197,736
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 24 (i) 571,071 821,071
Other equity instruments 24 (i) 200,000 .
Otherreserves 25 250,000 (18)
Retained earnings 104,221 499,310
Total equity 1,125,292 1,320,363
Total equity and liabilities 93,822,819 85,518,099
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019

The accompanying notes from pages 24 to 75 form anintegral partof the financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 23 April 2020
and were signed on its behalf by:

Steven Ewart
Director

23 April 2020
Company Number 1929333
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December2019

Figuresin Pounds Sterling Ordinary Preference Other Capital Currency Retained Total
thousand shares shares equity redemption trans- earnings equity

instruments reserve lation

reserve

Balance as at1January 2019 571,070 250,001 - - (18) 499,310 1,320,363
Profit for the year 109,380 109,380
Currency translation difference 18 18
Redemption of preference shares (250,000) 250,000 (250,000) (250,000)
Issue of other equity instruments 200,000 200,000
Dividends paidon ordinaryshares
(Refer Note 24 (iii)) (250,000) (250,000)
Other equity instruments
coupons paid (4,469) (4,469)
Balance at 31 December 571,070 1 200,000 250,000 - 104,221 1,125,292
2019
Balance as at1January 2018 571,070 250,001 - - (17) 389,974 1,211,028
Profitforthe year 109,336 109,336
Currency translation difference (1) (1)
Balance at 31 December 571,070 250,001 - - (18) 499,310 1,320,363
2018

The accompanying notes from pages 24 to 75 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2019

Figuresin Pounds Sterling thousand 2019 2018
Continuing operations:

Reconciliationof profit before tax to netcash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation 188,041 203,091
Adjustment for non-cash items:

Impairment and write-offs (103) 44
Currency translation reserves - (1
Other non-cash movements (28,575) (34,962)
Cash flows from operating activities

Net (increase)/decrease in trading portfolio assets (7,511,406) 2,174,296
Net decrease/(increase) in derivative financial instrument assets 1,276,890  (2,385,525)
Net decrease in reverse repurchase agreements at amortised cost - 5,360,638
Net (increase) in financial assets mandatorily at fair value (3,122,601) (29,119,524)
Net decreasef(increase) in loans and other receivables at amortised cost 1,187,727  (6,261,547)
Net decreasef(increase) in other assets 144 (67,925)
Net (decrease)fincrease in trading portfolio liabilities (1,779,318) 5,627,967
Net (decrease)in derivative financial instrument liabilities (288,825) (596,381)
Net increase/(decrease) in repurchase agreements at amortised cost 494,159  (9,861,938)
Net increase in financial liabilities mandatorily at fair value 9,737,873 28,582,479
Net (decrease)fincrease in borrowings (35,070) 6,462,481
Net increase in other liabilities 73,260 63,268
Corporate incometax (paid) (5,639) (1,856)
Net cash generated from operating activities 186,557 144,605
Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in subordinated debt borrowings 299,025 1,303
Issue of other equity instruments 200,000 -
Redemptionof preferenceshares (250,000) -
Dividends paid on ordinary shares (250,000) -
Other equity instruments coupons paid (4,469) -
Net cash generated (used in)/from financing activities (5,444) 1,303
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 181,13 145,908
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 582,345 436,437
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 763,458 582,345

The accompanying notes from pages 24 to 75 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Figuresin Pounds Sterling thousand

1. Reporting entity

These financial statements are prepared for Barclays Capital Securities Limited (the ‘Company’), the principa
activities of the Company include provision of Equity Financing, Equity Derivatives, Cash Equities and Agency
Execution Services. The financial statements are separate financial statements prepared for the Company only, in
line with the UK Companies Act2006. The Company is exempt by virtue of Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006
from the requirement to prepare group financial statements. These financial statements present information
about the Company as an individual undertaking and not about its Group. The parent undertaking of the smallest
group that presents consolidatedfinancial statementsis Barclays Bank Plc and the ultimate holding company and
the parent undertakingof the largest group that presents group financial statements is Barclays Plc, bothof which
prepare consolidated financial statementsin accordance with International Financial Reporting standards (‘IFRS’)
and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (‘IFRS 1C’) as published by the Internationa
Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’) and accordingly consolidated financial statements have not been prepared
based on the exemptionprovidedunder paragraph 4(a) of IFRS 10.

The Company is a private limited company domiciled and incorporated in the United Kingdom. The registered
office of the Company is1 Churchill Place, London, E14 5HP.

2. Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and interpretations (‘IFRICS’) issued by the Interpretations Committee, as published by the International
Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’). They are also in accordance with IFRS and IFRIC interpretations endorsed
by the European Union. The principal accounting policies appliedin the preparation of the financial statements
are set out below, and in the relevant notes to the financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention
modified to include the fair valuation of certain financial instruments to the extent required or permitted under
IFRS g ’Financial Instruments’ as set out in the relevant accounting policies. They are presented in thousands of
Pounds Sterling (£'000), the currency of the country in which the Company isincorporated.

Going Concern

After reviewing the Company's performance projections (including theimplications of the UK’s decision to leave
the European Union and from the COVID-19 outbreak), the available banking facilities and taking into account the
support available from Barclays Bank Plc and the ability and intent of Barclays Bank Plc to continue to provide
support to the Company, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate accessto resourcesto enable
it to meet its obligations and to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. In addition to the
internal stress testing scenario, this review included reference to an additional stress testing scenario with severity
of downside stresses aligned to the stress experienced in Q1 2020, effectively assuming further market
deterioration of similar magnitude. Consequently, the Directors have adopted the going concem basis in preparing
these financial statements.

New and amended standards
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

There are no new, amended or proposed standards that had had or are expectedto have amaterial impact on the
Company’s accounting policies, other thanthe below.
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Figures in Pounds Sterling thousand

IAS 12 - Income Taxes - Amendments to 1AS 12

The IASB amended 1AS 12 in order to clarify the accounting treatment of the income tax consequences of
dividends. Asaresuit of the amendment, thetax consequences of all payments on financial instruments that are
classified as equity for accounting purposes, wherethose payments are consideredto be adistribution of profit,
will be included in, and will reduce, the income statement tax charge, with effect from 1 January 2019. The
amendments of 1AS 12 were applied to the income tax consequences of dividends recognised on or after the
beginning of the earliest comparative period.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied.

(a) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using their functional currency, being
Pounds Sterling (GBP) the currencyof the primary economic environmentin whichthe entity operates.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Sterling using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing at the
period end. Foreign exchange gains and losses resuiting fromthe retranslation and settlement of these items are
recognisedin the income statement except for qualifyingcash flow hedges or hedges of net investment.

The Company’s foreign operations (including its Shanghai Re presentative Office which was closed duringthe year)
based outside the UK have different functional currencies. Prior to consolidation(or equity accounting) the assets
and liabilities of the non-Sterling operations are translated at the closing rate and the items of income, expense
and other comprehensiveincome are translated into Sterling at therate on the date of the transactions. Exchange
differencesarisingon the translation of foreign operations are indudedin the currency translationreserves within
equity. These are transferred to the Income Statement when the Company loses control, joint control or
significant influence over the foreign operation or on disposal of operation.

(b) Feesand commissions and Revenue recognition

The Company applies I FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard establishes a five-step model
governing revenue recognition. (Refer Note 5 on Fees and Commission for further details). The Company
recognises fee and commission income charged for services provided oncompletionof the underlying transaction.

(c) Interest

Interest income or expense is recognised on all interest bearing financial assets and liabilities held at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

The effectiveinterestrate is the rate that exactly discounts the expected future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument, or when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of
the instrument. The applicationof the method has the effect of recognising income (and expense)receivable (or
payable) on the instrument evenly in proportion to the amount outstanding over the period to maturity or
repayment.
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Figuresin Pounds Sterling thousand

(d) NetTradingincome

Net trading income is trading income arising from the margins which are achieved through market-making,
customer business, and from changes in market value caused by movements in interest and foreign exchange
rates, equity prices and othermarketvariables. Trading positions in financial instruments are valuedon afair value
basis. The resulting income isincluded in trading income along with interest and dividends arising from long and
short positions and funding costs relating to tradingactivities.

(e) Current Tax & Deferred Income Tax

Income tax payable on taxable profits (‘current tax’) isrecognised as an expense in the period in which the profits
arise.Income tax recoverable on tax allowable losses is recognised as an asset only to the extent that it is regarded
as recoverable by offset against currentyear or prior yeartaxable profits.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising from the
differencesbetween the tax basis of the assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the Company’s financia
statements. Deferred Income tax is determined using taxrates and legislation enacted or substantially enactedby
the Balance Sheet date and that are expected to apply whenthe deferred tax asset is realised or deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assetsare recognised on deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax creditstothe extent that it isregarded as probable that sufficient tax profits will be available against

which the deductible temporary difference, unused taxlosses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred and current tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is both the legal right to set off and
intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously with the same tax

authority.
(f) Financial assets and liabilities

The Company applies IFRS g Financial Instruments to the recognition, classification and measurement, and
derecognition of financial assets, financial liabilities, and the impairment of financial assets.

Recognition
The Company recognises financial assets and liabilities whenit becomes a party to the terms of the contract. Trade
date or settlement date accountingis applied depending on the classification of the financial asset /liability.

Classification and measurement
Financial assets are classified on the basis of two criteria:

i) The business model withinwhich financial assets are managed; and
i) Their contractual cash flow characteristics (whether the cash flows represent ‘solely payments of
principal and interest’ (SPPI)).

The Company assesses the business model criteria at a portfolio level. Information that is considered in
determining the applicable business model includes (i) policies and objectives for the relevant portfolio, (ii) how
the performance and risks of the portfolio are managed, evaluated and reported to management, and (jii) the
frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, sales expectation for future periods, and the reasons for
such sales.
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The contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets are assessed with reference to whether the cash flows
represent SPPL. In assessing whether contractual cash flows are SPPI compliant, interest is defined as
consideration primarily for the time value of money and the credit risk of the principal outstanding. The time vaue
of money is defined as the element of interest that provides consideration only for the passage of time and not
consideration for other risks or costs associated with holding the financial asset. Terms that could change the
contractual cash flows so that it would not meet the condition for SPPI are considered, including: (i) contingent
and leverage features, (ii)non-recourse arrangements and (jii) features that could modify the time value of money.

Financial Assets/ Liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets will be measured at amortised cost if they are held within abusinessmodel whose objectiveisto
hold financial assets in order to collect/pay contractual cash flows, and their contractual cash flows represent
solely receipts/payments of principal and interest. Loans and receivables and other financial assets are held at
amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for trading liabilities and liabilities
mandatorily at fair value, which are held at fair value through profit or loss. Borrowings, repurchase agreements
and other financial liabilities are held at amortised cost.

Accounting for financial Assets at fair value through profit and loss account

Financial assets that are held for trading / mandatorily at fair value are recognised at fair value through profit or
loss. In addition, financial assets are held at fair value through profit or lossif they do not contain contractual terms
that give rise on specified datesto cash flows that are SPPI, or if the financial asset is not held in a business model
that is either (i) abusiness model to collectthe contractual cash flows or (ii) abusiness model that is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling. Subsequent changes in fair value for these instruments are
recognised in the income statementin netinvestmentincome, exceptif reportingitin tradingincome reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Determining the fair value

Where the classification of a financial instrument requires it to be stated at fair value, this is determined by
referencetothe quotedmarket pricein an active market wherever possible. Whereno such active market exists
for the particular asset, the Company uses a valuation technique to arrive at the fair value, including the use of
prices obtainedinrecent arms' length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

Collateral

The Company obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where this is considered appropriate. The
collateral normally takes the form of a lien over the customer’s assets and gives the Company a claim on these
assets for both existing and futureliabilities.

The Company alsoreceives collateral in the form of cash or securitiesinrespect of other credit instruments, such
as stock borrowing contracts, and derivative contractsin ordertoreduce creditrisk. Collateral received in the form
of securitiesisnotrecorded on thebalance sheet. Collateral received in the form of cash is recorded on the balance
sheet with a corresponding liability. These items are assigned to deposits received from banks or other
counterparties. Any interest payable or receivable arising thereon is recorded as interest expense or interest
income respectively except for funding costs relating to trading activities which are recorded in net trading
income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Figuresin Pounds Sterling thousand
Impairment

The Company is required to recognise expected credit losses (ECLs) based on unbiased forward-looking
information for all financial assets at amortised cost, lease receivables, debt financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. Intercompany exposures,
including loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, are also in scope under IFRS 9 for ECL purposes.

At the reporting date, an allowance (or provision for loan commitments and financial guarantees) is required for
the 12 month ECLs. Ifthe credit risk has significantly increased sinceinitial recognition (Stage 2), or if the financia
instrumentis creditimpaired(Stage 3) an allowance (or provision) should be recognised for the lifetime ECLs.

The measurementof expected creditloss involvesincreased complexity and judgement, including estimation of
probabilities of default, loss given default, arange of unbiased future economicscenarios, estimation of expected
lives, and estimation of exposures at default and assessing significant increasesin credit risk. (Refer Note 7).

Key concepts and managementjudgments

The impairmentrequirements are complex and require management judgments, estimates and assumptions. Key
concepts and management judgmentsinclude:

Definition of default, credit impaired assets; write offs, and interest incomerecognition

The definition of defaultfor the purpose of determining expected creditlosses has been alignedto the Regulatory
Capital CRR Article 178 definition of default, which considers indicators that the debtor is unlikely to pay, includes
exposuresin forbearance andis no later than when the exposure is morethan 9o days past due. When exposures
are identified as credit impaired or purchased or originated as such, IFRS 9 requires separate disclosure and
interestincomeisrequired to be calculatedon the carrying value net of the impairmentallowance.

Expected life

Lifetime expected credit losses must be measured over the expected life. This is restricted to the maximum
contractual life and takesinto account expected prepayment, extension, call and similar options. The exceptions
are certain revolverfinancial instruments, such as credit cards and bank overdrafts, that include botha drawn and
an undrawn component where the entity’s contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel the undrawn
commitmentdoesnot limitthe entity’s exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period.

Discounting

Expected credit losses are discounted at the effective interest rate ( EIR) at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof and consistent withincomerecognition.

For loan commitments, the EIRisthat rate that is expected to apply when theloan is drawn down and a financia
asset is recognised. Issued financial guarantee contracts are discounted at arisk free rate. For variable/floating
rate financial assets, the spot rate at the reporting dateis used and projections of changes in the variable rate over
the expected life are notmade to estimate future interest cash flows or for discounting.

Modeling techniques

ECLs are calculated by multiplying three main components, being the probability of default (PD), loss given default
(LGD) and the exposure at default (EAD), discounted at the original effective interest rate. The regulatory Basel
Committee of Banking Supervisors (BCBS) ECL calculations are leveraged for IFRS 9 modelling but adjusted for
key differences which indude:

=  BCBSrequires 12 month through the economic cycle losses whereas IFRS 9 requires 12 months or lifetime
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point in time losses based on conditions at the reportingdate and multiple forecasts of the future economic
conditions over the expectedlives;

= |FRS gmodelsdonot include certain conservative BCBS model floors and downturnassessments and require
discounting to the reporting date at the original EIR rather than usingthe cost of capital to the date of default;

*  Management adjustments are made to modelled outputto account for situations where known or expected
risk factors and information have not been considered in the modelling process, for example forecast
economic scenarios for uncertain political events; and

=  ECLismeasured at the individual financial instrument level, however a collective approach where financia
instruments withsimilarrisk characteristics are grouped together, with apportionment to individual financial
instruments, is used where effects can only be seen at a collective level, for example for forward-looking
information.

For the IFRS g impaimment assessment, the Company applies the Barclays Group’s risk Models to determine the
PD, LGD and EAD. For stage 2 and 3, the Company applieslifetime PDs but uses12 month PDs for stage 1.

The 12 month ECL s calculated by multiplyingthe 12 month PD, LGD and the EAD. The 12 month and lifetime PDs
represent the PD occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively.
The EADrepresentsthe expectedbalance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest
from the balance sheet dateto the defaultevent together withany expected drawdowns of committed facilities
The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other
attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time itisexpected to be realised and the time value of
money.

Netting

Financial assets andliabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheetif,and only if, there isa
legally enforceable right to set offthe recognised amountsin all circumstancesand thereis an intention to settle
on a net basis, or torealise an asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company enters into master agreements with counterparties whenever possible and, when appropriate,
obtains collateral. Master agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding transactions with
the counterparty will fall due and all amounts will be settledon a net basis.

Accounting for derivatives

Derivative instruments are contracts whose value is derived from one or more underlying financial instruments or
indices definedin the contract. They include swaps, forward-rate agreements, futures, options and combinations
of these instruments and primarily affect the Barclays Group’s net interest income, net trading income and
derivative assets and liabilities. Notional amounts of the contracts are not recordedon the balance sheet.

All derivative instruments are held at fair value through profit or loss, except for derivatives that are in a
designated cash flow or net investment hedge accounting relationship. Derivatives are classified as assets when
their fair value is positive or as liabilities whentheir fair value is negative. This includes termsincluded in a contract
or financial liability (the host), which, had it been a standalone contract, would have met the definition of a
derivative. If theseare separated from the host, i.e. when the economic characteristics of theembedded derivative
are not closely related with those of the host contract and the combined instrumentis not measured at fair value
through profit or loss, then they are accounted for in the same way as derivatives. For financial assets, the
requirements are whetherthe financial asset contains contractual terms that give rise on specified datesto cash
flows that are SPPI, and consequently the requirements for accounting for embedded derivatives are not
applicable to financial assets.

(g) Securitiesborrowing, securities lending, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements
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Securities may be lent or sold subject to a commitment to repurchase them (stock lending arrangement). Such
securities areretained on the balance sheet whensubstantially all the risks and rewards of ownership remain with
the Company, and the counterparty liability isincluded separately on the balance sheet when cash consideration
isreceived. Similarly, wherethe Company borrows or purchases securities subject to acommitment to resell them
(stock borrowing arrangement) but does not acquire the risks and rewards of ownership, the transactions are
treated as collateralised loans when cash consideration is paid, and the securities are not includedin the balance
sheet. These secured financing transactions are mandatorily or designated (as applicable) at fair value, and
presentedin the financial assets/liabilities at fair value throughincome statement.

(h) Investmentsin subsidiaries

Investmentsin subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment, if any.
(i) Cash andcash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash comprises demand deposits and cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents comprise highly liquid investments that are convertible into cash with an insignificant risk of changes
in value with original maturities of three months or less. Trading balances are not considered to be part of cash
equivalents.

Client Money

Segregated client funds are excluded from the balance sheet of the Company in line with Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) Client Money Rules set out in the Client Assets Sourcebook Handbook (“CASS”) CASS 7 Client
Money Rules. For further details, please refer to Note 11.

(j) Issueddebtsecurities

Issued financial instruments or their components are classified as liabilities where the contractual arrangement
resultsin the Company having a present obligation to either deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder,
to exchange financial instruments on terms that are potentially unfavourable orto satisfy the obligation otherwise
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of equity shares.
Issued financial instruments, or their components, are classified as equitywhere they meet the definition of equity
and confer on the holder aresidual interest in the assets of the Company. The components of issued financia
instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for separately with the equity
component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount
separately determined as the fair value of the liability component.

(k) Share capital and dividends
Share issue costs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options or the acquisition of a business are
shownin equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the periodin which they are paid or, if earlier, approved
by the Company’s shareholders.

(1) Provisions
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Provisions are recognised for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is more likely
than not that a transfer of economic benefits will be necessary to settle the obligation, and these can be reliably
estimated.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events
or present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed unlesstheyare remote.

(m) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of estimates. It also requires
managementto exercise judgementin applying the accounting policies. The key areasinvolving a higher degree
of judgementor complexity, or areas where assumptions are significantto the individual financial statements are
disclosedin Fair Value of financial instrumentsin Note 27. There are no other areasinvolvingsignificant accounting
estimatesand judgements.

4. Netinterest expense

2019 2018
Net Interest expense (2,897) (1,000)
(2,897) (1,000)

Interest expense relates to Interest on Subordinated Debt funding of £334m (2018:£35m) held at amortised cost.

5. Netfee and commissionincome

The Company applies IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard establishes a five-step model
governing revenue recognition. The five-step model requires ‘the Company’ to (i) identify the contract with the
customer, (ii)identify each of the performance obligations included in the contract, (iii) determine the amount of
consideration in the contract, (iv) allocate the consideration to each of the identified performance obligations and
(v) recognise revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

The Company recognises fee and commission income charged for services provided by the Company on
completion of the underlying transaction.

Fee and commission income is disaggregated by fee types that reflect the nature of the services offered by the
Company in accordance with IFRS 15. All fee and commission income is accounted for in scope of IFRS 15.
Information on the services provided and fee typesis detailed below.

Fee Type

Markets Execution 164,760 207,614
Management and Advisory 25,104 17,113
Service fees from affiliates 25,256 29,580
Total revenue from contracts with customers 215,120 254,307
Transfer pricing and revenue share (32,633) (17,145)
Fee and commission income 182,487 237,162
Non Affiliates (46,629) (55,464)
Affiliates (78,100) (91,300)
Fee and commission expense (124,729) (146,764)
Net fee and commission income 57,758 90,398

The net fee and commission income (including the previous year comparatives) have been regrouped and
presentedasbelow:
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i) Thenetfee and commissionincome presented in earlieryearsincluded service fees from affiliate presented
net under fees and commission expense from affiliates. These have been disaggregated into fee and
commission income and fee and commissionexpenses.

ii) The transfer pricing and revenue share were presented net under markets execution in earlier years. These
have been disaggregated and presentedseparately.

Fee types

Markets Execution
Markets Executionfees are earned for executing clienttransactions with various exchanges and over-the-counter

markets and assisting clients with clearing transactions. Markets Execution fees arerecognised at the pointin time
the associated servicehasbeen completed whichis generally the trade date of the transaction. Market e xecution

feesis contributed by the Cash Equities and Equity Derivatives businesses of the Company.

Cash Equitiesearn fees from agencyexecutionof clients’ orders eitherrelatingto single stock, basket of stocks or
providing direct marketaccessto allow clients to place their orderfor execution through the Barclays’ electronic
trading solution. Equity Derivatives earnfees for the executionof clients’ orders on equities flow derivatives.

Markets Executionfeesare eamed by the Company as part of a collaborative arrangement with affiliated entities.
Collaborative arrangements are outside the scope of IFRS15 however are recognised following the revenue
recognition pattemn of the underlying activity in accordance with IFRS15 principles. The amounts reported in
Markets Execution fees are the Company’s gross revenues prior to the allocation to the affiliates under transfer

pricing and revenue sharing agreements.
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Managementand Advisory Fees

Advisory Fees are generated from advisory services provided to clients by the Cash Equities business. Advisory
fees relate to research services to deliver differentiated market insight, actionable ideas and collaborative
services. The fees are recognised at the point in time when the services related to the transaction have been
completed underthe terms of engagementand the related cost isrecognised asincurredin fee and commission
expense.

Service fees from Affiliates

Fee and commission income includes Sales credits revenues which are compensation for services provided by the
Company to an affiliate entity. Sales credits are in scope of IFRS 15 and are generally recognised at point in time
when the services related to the transaction have been completed and the Company is entitled to the
compensation.

Transfer pricingand revenue share

Transfer pricing revenues relate to a revenue allocation process (revenue sharing) between affiliate entities for
transactions wherethe affiliate entities mutually provide services to a customer. Profit sharing revenuesrelate to
aglobal profit split used to allocate net revenue for certainbusinesses whenmultiple affiliated entities participate
in delivering the service to customers, but it is not possible to determine an arm’s length remuneration amount
through a sales credit or transfer pricing process. Both transfer pricing and profit sharing revenues are
collaborative arrangements outside the scope of IFRS15 however are recognised following the revenue
recognition pattem of the underlying activity in accordance with IFRS15 principles.

The Company has a global profit sharing modelfor its Equity Financing business. The Equities Financing business
earns fee income from prime brokerage services provided to its clients which indudes markets execution fees and
clearing and settiement services. Refer Note 35 for Related Party disclosures.

The Company has a transfer pricing agreement for its Agency Derivative Services (ADS) business. ADS earns fee
income from derivatives execution and clearing services. Refer Note 35 for the Related Party disclosures.

Fee and Commission Expense - Non Affiliates

There are no significant costs incurred to obtain the performance [ execution contracts. Costs to fulfil the
contractsinclude the execution fees and clearing fees charged by third parties, agents fees, brokerage paid and
the registry /messaging services fees, whichare recognised asincurred. There are no other costs that are incurred
to generate or enhance resources to satisfy future performance obligations.

Fee and Commission Expense - Affiliates

Fee and commission expenses paid to affiliates include Sales credits paid to affiliates for sales services provided
to the Company. These sales services are directly incremental to the Company generating income, whichinclude
both fee and commission income and net trading income.

Remaining performance obligations

The Company applies the practical expedient of IFRS 15 and does not disclose information about remaining
performance obligations that have original expected durations of one year or less or because the Companyhasa
right to consideration that corresponds directly with the value of the service providedto the client or customer.
Upon review, the Company determined that no material remaining performance obligations are in scope of the
remaining performance obligations disclosure.

Contractassets and contract liabilities
The Company has no material contract assets or contract liabilities as at 31 December2019.
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6. Net trading Income

2019 2018

Net tradingincome 353,425 347,256

The amounts presented in the above table are net of transfer pricing arrangements and protit sharing
agreements.

7. Creditimpairment

Total Total
. Impairment Recoveries 2019 Impairment Recoveries 2018
Loans and Advances at 103 - 103 (44) (44)
amortised cost -
Total ImpairmentCharges 103 - 103 (44) - (44)

Refer Note 31 for more details on impairment movements during the year.

8. Operating expenses

2019 2018

The nature of the operating expensesis as follows:
Recharges (219,739) (228,031)
Staff costs(refer note 9) (12) (116)

Auditor’sremuneration

audit of the Company's financial statements? (91) (91)
- Other audit related services® : (388) (351)
Other administration and general expenses (18) (4,930)
(220,348) (233,519)

The majority of operating expenses of the Company, including staff costs and administrative costs, have been
borne by Parent /fellow subsidiary undertakings and recharged by way of management charges.

Notes
aComprises the fees for the statutory audit of the Company.

b Comprises services in relation to statutory and regulatory filings. These include audit services for the review of interim
financial information.

Employees and key management, including Directors
Directors’ remuneration

ExecutiveDirectors

The Executive directors did not receive any emoluments; were not entitled to any benefits under Long Term
Incentive Schemes or the Share Value Plan; and did not accrue any retirementbenefitsin respect of their services
to the Company during the year2019(2018: Nil). The Executive directors are employed by another Group company
and their services to this Company are considered incidental to other services provided. No Director exercised
optionsunder the Barclays Plc Share Save Scheme in 2019 (2018: Nil).

Non-Executive Directors

With effect from 25 September 2019, each of the Non-Executive directors were entitled to an annual fee of £20,000
for their servicesto the Company. Total fees paid to the Non-Executive directorsin 2019was £15,952 in 2019 (2018:
Nil).. R } :
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9. Staff costs

2019 2018
Wages and Salaries (96) (98)
Social security costs (1) (12)
Other pension costs (5) (6)
(112) (116)

The monthly average number of persons employed during the year was 1 (2018: 1) and the Company has no
employeesas at end of the currentyear following closure of the Shanghai Representative Office (Refer Note 3(a)
for further details). Staff costs for the current and previous yearrelate to the Company’s Shanghai Representative
Office. The majority of services are provided by staff employed by Parent / other Barclays Group Companies and
recharged by way of management charges.

10. Taxation

2019 2018

Major components of the tax expense
Current tax charge:
Current year (78,300) (86,317)
Adjustments for prior years 856 (7,659)

(77,444) (93,976)
Deferred tax charge/(credit):
Current year 64 1,386
Adjustments for prioryears (1,276) (1,160)
Rate Change Adjustment (5) (5)

(1,217) 221

Tax charge: (78,661) (93,755)

The tax charge is based on the standard UK corporation tax rate of 19%. In addition, from 1 January 2016, the

company is subject to the bankingsurcharge of 8%. As aresult, the main rate of UK corporation tax for year ended
31 December 2019is27%.

The table below shows the reconciliation betweenthe actual tax charge and the tax charge that would result from
applying the standard UK corporation tax rate to the Company’s profit before tax.

Profit before taxation 188,041 203,091

Tax charge based on the standard UK corporationtax rate of 27% (2018: 27%)

(50,771) (54,834)
Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Adjustmentsinrespectofprior years (420) (8,819)
Non-creditable taxes including withholding taxes (28,695) (30,095)
Non-taxable income 23 (2)
AT1tax credit? : 1,207 -
Impact of change in tax rates (5) (3)

(78,661) (93,755)
Effective taxrate? 41.8% 46.2%

The effective tax rate of 41.8% (2018: 46.2%) is due to the fact that the overseas tax credit offset is available only
tothe extent of the tax capacity and the balance of non-creditable overseas tax creditsis written off through tax
expenses.
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2Effective from 1 January 2019, due to an IAS 12 update, the tax relief on paymentsin relationto AT1 instruments
has beenrecognisedin the tax charge of the Income statement The effectivetax rate would have been 42.4% if
thisamendmentwas not effective, thereby tax reliefs on paymentsin relation to AT1instruments of £4.6m being
includedin retained earnings.

1. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

2019 2018
Bank Balances 763,458 582,345

The Company holds monies on behalf of some clients in accordance with the Client Money Rules issued by the
FCA. These client monies are separated from the Company’s funds and are held in segregated bank accounts, and
are excluded from the Balance Sheet of the Company as stated in Note 3(i). As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s
client moniesamounted to £70,505,662 (2018:£89,717,519).

12. Trading portfolio

Trading portfolio assets

2019 2018
Equity Securities 19,552,837 12,117,444
Debt Securities 348,196 272,183

19,901,033 12,389,627

Trading portfolio liabilities

Equity Securities 10,830,827 12,597,463
Debt Securities 37,654 50,336
10,868,481 12,647,799

Refer Note 27 for analysis of the fair values of these securities and the valuation methodology, Note 31 for credit
riskand Note 32 for maturity disclosures.

13. Derivative financial instruments

Net fair values of derivative financial instruments held by the Company are as follows:

Fair value Falr value
As at 31 December 2019 assets liabilities
Foreign exchange derivatives '
Forward foreign exchange ’ 42,167 39,333
Foreign exchange options 15,035 -
Currency swaps 26,184 61,505
Interest rate derivatives .
Interest rate swaps 359,263 243,872
Equity and stock index derivatives ‘
Options bought and sold 1,967,140 2,996,648
Swaps and forwards 2,107,537 2,179,118
Exchange traded futures Joptions (bought/sold) 1,019,136 1,506,449
Credit derivatives
OTCswaps - 1,186
Total derivativesheld fortrading = o _ _ 5,536,462 7,028111
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Fair value Fair value
As at 31 December 2018 assets liabilities
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward foreign exchange 38,514 207,865
Foreign exchange options 18,725 -
Currency swaps ’ 23,007 32,285
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 303,267 204,036
Equity and stock index derivatives
Optionsbought andsold? 1,965,037 2,115,665
Swaps and forwards 2,931,605 3,107,635
Exchange traded futures/options-bought and sold ® 1,533,001 1,648,138
Credit derivatives
OTC swaps 196 1,313
Total derivatives held for trading ) 6,813,352 7,316,937

Refer Note 27 for analysis of the fair values of these derivatives and the valuation methodology, Note 31 for
credit riskand Note 32 for maturity disclosures.

32018 figures restated to reclassify £1,530m and £1,647m of fair value assets and liabilities respectively from Options bought
and sold to Exchange traded futures / options - bought and sold.

14. Securities borrowing, securities lending, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Reverse repurchase agreements (and stock borrowing or similar transaction) are a form of secured lending
whereby the Company provides a loan or cash collateral in exchange for the transfer of collateral, generally in
the form of marketable securities subject to an agreementto transfer the securitiesback at a fixed price in the
future. Repurchase agreements are where the Company obtains such loans or cash collateral, in exchange for
the transfer of collateral.

Accounting for repurchase agreements including other similar lending and borrowing

The Company may sell (a repurchase agreement) or lend securities subject to a commitment to repurchase or
redeem them. The securities are retained on the balance sheet as the Companyretains substantiallyall the risks
and rewards of ownership. Consideration received (or cash collateral provided) is accounted for as a financia
liability at amortised cost if the relevantrepurchase agreements satisfy the SPPI conditionsasper IFRS 9.

2019 2018

Repurchase agreements at amortised cost
Current liabilities 7,522,208 -
Non-currentliabilities - 7,028,049
7,522,208 7,028,049
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15. Financial assets mandatorily at fair value

Current assets:

Debt securities 49,978 128,996
Loans and Advances 3,944,253 3,461,888
Reverse Repurchase agreements 29,487,887 26,886,314
Total 33,482,118 30,477,198
Non-current assets:

Debt securities 170,152 158,010
Loans and Advances 216,579 224,741
Reverse Repurchase agreements 113,701 -
Total 500,432 382,751

Debt securities are mainly Notes issued by branches and subsidiaries of Barclays Bank Plc, which the Company
buys inthe secondary market in its capacity as market maker for the Notes. Refer Note 27 for analysis of the fair
values of these instruments and the valuation methodology, Note 31 for credit risk and Note 32 for maturity
disclosures.

16. Loans and other receivables

Current assets:

Settlement balances 13,990,965 17,389,518
Other loansandreceivables 19,481,497 17,309,645
Total 33,472,462 34,699,163
Non-current assets:

Other loans and receivables 50,625 11,651
Total 50,625 11,651

The majority of the Company’s loans and other receivables are transactions with related parties consisting of
branches and subsidiaries of Barclays Bank Plc (Note 35).

17. Other assets

Trade and other receivables - Financial 72,527 135,321
Trade and other receivables-Non Financial 43,702 25,945
Total 116,229 161,266
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18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The following table shows the movement on deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year.

As at1 - Prior year (Cha.rged) / As at

Assets January Trz.ansmonal Adjustments creditedto 31 December
2019 Adjustment to Income Income 2019
Statement
Statement

Other provisions 746 - (1,276) 59 (471)
Deferred tax assets/
(liabilities) 746 - (1,276) 59 (471
Falling due in one year
Falling due after one year (471)

As at1 Transitional PriorYear  (Charged)/ As at
Assets January Adjustment Adjustments  creditedto 31 December

2018 toincome income 2018
Statement statement

Other provisions 1,160 - (1,160) 1,317 1,317
Effects of changesin
accounting policy? - (635) - 64 (571)
Deferred tax assets 1,160 (635) (1,60) 1,381 746
Falling due in one year -
Falling due after one year 746

2 Following the adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments on 1 January 2018, £2.7m was reclassified to retained
earnings creatinga deferred tax liability of £0.6m as of 31 December2018.

Legislation has beenintroduced toreduce the mainrate of UK corporation taxto 19% from 1 April 2017and 17% from
1 April 2020. In addition, from 1 January 2016, the company is subject to the banking surcharge of 8%. Deferred tax
on the other provisions has been recognised at 27%, corporate tax rate of 19% and banking surcharge of 8%, when
this is expected to unwind. All other deferred tax assets and liabilities have been calculated at the future unwind
rate of 25% (2018: 25%), being future corporate tax rate of 17% and banking surcharge of 8%, when the deferredtax
assetsand liabilities are expected to unwind.

On11 March 2020 it was announced (and substantively enacted on 17 March2020) that the UK corporation taxrate
would remain at 19% and notreduce to 17%(the previously enacted rate)from1 April 2020. The deferred tax balances
included within the accounts have been calculated with reference to the rate of 17%, as required under IFRS.
However, following the substantive enactment of the rate of 19%, it is anticipated that the reversal of temporary
differences will occur at this rate and that the maximum impact on the quantum of net deferred tax liability
recognisedis assessed to be immaterial.

Deferredincometax assets have not been recognised on unused foreign tax credits of £1,611,417 (2018: £1,611417)

to the extent thatthey arenot regarded asrecoverablein the foreseeable future. There is currently no expiry date
for the use of these foreign tax credits.
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19. Investment insubsidiary
Name of Subsidiary | Registered Office Class of Name of Total proportion of
Address Shares/ immediate Nominal value held by
Units parent immediate parent (%)
Barclays Capital 1 Churchill Place, Ordinary Barclays Capital
Nominees(No.2) London, E14 SHP, Securities Limited 100
Limited England
Consolidated financial statements have not been prepared. See Note1.
20. Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair value
Current liabilities
Fair Value Contractual Fair Value Contractual
amount due on amount due on
maturity maturity
2019 2019 2018 2018
Deposits 1,644,221 1,647,845 1,890,897 1,896,096
Repurchase agreements 36,223,076 36,225,403 28,049,613 28,062,258
Other financial liabilities 2,056,289 2,055,096 274,897 275,555
39,923,586 39,928,344 30,215,407 30,233,909
Non-current liabilities
Fair Value Contractual Fair Value Contractual
amount due on amount due on
maturity maturity
2019 2019 2018 2018
Repurchase agreements - - 4,475 4,569
Other financial liabilities 813,872 843,927 779,703 831,673
813,872 843,927 784,178 836,242

Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair value are primarily made up of Intercompany deposits, repurchase
agreements and fully funded derivatives. Refer Note 27 for analysis of the fair values of these instruments and
the valuation methodology and Note 32 for maturity disclosures.

21. Borrowings

2019 2018
Current liabilities:
Bank loans and overdrafts 12,193,294 8,352,979
Other borrowings 17,847 932
Settlement balances 13,256,036 17,428,244
Total 25,467,177 25,782,155
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Non-current liabilities:

Bankloans and overdrafts . 409,730 129,823
Other borrowings 333,679 34,654
Total 743,409 164,477

The majority of the Company’s borrowings have a contractual maturity of not more than three months (Note
32).

Other borrowingsinclude asubordinated loan agreement with Barclays Bank Plc comprisingdebt of US$24.5m
(2018: US$24.5m) and €17m (2018: €17m) with a contractual maturity of one to three years and subordinated
callable notes issued to Barclays Bank Plc during the year in two tranches of £150m each with a contractual
maturity of five to ten yearsand over ten yearsrespectively (Note 32 and 34).

The majority of the Company’s borrowings are transactions with related parties comprising of branches and
subsidiaries of Barclays Bank Plc (Note 35). The fair value of borrowingsis set outin Note 27.

22. Otherliabilities

Trade & other payables-financial 312,104 253,096
Trade & other payables-non-financial 14,252 -
Total - 326,356 253,096

23. Current tax liabilities

Current tax liabilities are as follows:
UK corporation tax payable 3,856 - 5,639

24. Shareholders’ equity
(i) Share capital

Particulars of the Company’s share capital were as follows:

Authorised

650,000,000 Ordinary shares 650,000 " 650,000
1,000 non-cumulative preference shares 1 1
661,499,000 Redeemable non-cumulative preference shares 661,499 661,499
As at 31 December 1,311,500 1,311,500

Allotted and fully paid

571,070,000 Ordinary shares 571,070 571,070
1,000 non-cumulative preference shares 1 1
250,000,000 Redeemable non-cumulative preferenceshares - 250,000
As at 31 December 571,071 821,071

The par value of the ordinary sharesis £1 each. The par value of the preference sharesis £1 each. All issued shares
are fully paid.

Both classes of preference shares have priority overordinary sharesin the paymentof dividends or in the event
of a winding up. The redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of £250m were redeemed in full in August

2019.
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The ordinary shareholders are entitled to vote at any general meeting of the Company, whereas the preference
shareholders have no voting rights.

(i) Other equityinstruments

The Company issued floating rate perpetual subordinated write down securities (AT1securities) during the year.
The AT1 securities are perpetual securities with no fixed maturity and are structured to qualify as AT1instruments
under prevailing capital rules applicable as at the relevant issue date.

Initial call date 2019 2018
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) securitiesissuance 2024 200,000 -
As at 31 December 200,000 -

The principal terms of the AT1securities are described below:

= AT1securities rank behind the claims against the Company of 1) unsubordinated creditors; 2) claims which are
expressed to be subordinated to the claims of unsubordinated creditors of the Company but no further or
otherwise; 3) claims which are in respect of any secondary non preferential debts; 4) claims which are, or are
expressed to be, junior to the claims of other creditors of the Company, whether subordinated or
unsubordinated, other than those whose claims rank, or are expressed to rank, pari passu with, or junior to,
-the claims of the Holders of the AT1 securities.

» AT1securitiesbear a floating rate of interest. Interest on the AT1securitiesis due and payable only at the sole
discretion of the Company, and the Company shall have sole and absolute discretion at all times and for any
reason to cancel (in whole or in part) any interest payment that would otherwise be payable on any interest
payment date.

» AT1 securities are undated and are redeemable, at the option of the Company, in whole or in part five years
from the date of issue and every three months thereafter. In addition, the AT1 securities are redeemable, at
the option of the Company, in whole in the event of certain changesin the tax or regulatorytreatment of the
AT1 securities. Any redemptions require the prior consent of the PRA.

s Should the fully loaded CET1ratio of the Companyfall below 7%,the AT1securities are irrevocably wntten down
by an amount equal to the lower of1) the amount necessary to generate sufficient CET1 capital to restore the
Company’s CET1 ratio to at least 7%; or 2) the amount that would reduce the principal amount of the AT
securitiesto zero.

(iii) Dividends

inrespect of the financial year ended31 December 2019, the Directors have paid interim dividends totaling £250m
(2018:Nil) on the ordinary shares and do not recommend the payment of afinal dividend (2018: Nil).

25. Otherreserves

2019 2018
Capital redemption reserve 250,000
Currency translation reserve - (18)
Total 250,000 (18)

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemptionreserve hasbeen createdin relation to the redemption of preference shares during the
year.

Currency translation reserve

The currency translation reserve representing the cumulative loss on the translation of the foreign operations
of the Company (Shanghai Representative Office) has been released to the Income statement during the year,
'upon closure of the Representative Office.
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26. Interest instructured entities

A structured entity is an entity in which voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding which
entity controls it. Structured entities are generally created to achieve a narrow and well defined objective and
there are specificrestrictions around their ongoing activities.

Unconsolidated structured entities

The Company may hold interests in structured entities it would not have to consolidate even if consolidated
financial statements were prepared; and where itholds no interests in structured entities, it may have sponsored
the entity. The natureand extent of itsinterestsin unconsolidated structured entities, and the risks associated
withitsinterestinthose entities are set out below.

Unconsolidated structured entities in which the Company has an interest

An interest in a structured entity is any form of contractual or non-contractual involvement which creates
variability in returns arising from the performance ofthe structured entity for the Company but which itis not
able toinfluence orisinsufficient to lead to the consolidation ofthe structured entity. Such interestsinclude but
are notlimited to holdings of debt or equity securities, derivatives that transfer financial risks to the Company,
and in some cases financial guarantees and investment management fee agreements. At the market, plain-
vanilla interest rate swaps and derivatives that are determined to introduce risk to a structured entity are not
considered to be aninterest in an entity.

The level of risk that the Companyis exposed to is determined by the nature and purpose of itholdingan interest
inthe entity.

Due to the large number of structured entities in which the Company holds interests, information about such
entities has been provided summarised by the purpose of the entities, other than where the Company holds
interests in a structured entity or is exposed to losses from a structured entity that are individually significant
where moreinformationis given. Significance is measured by reference to the greater of the carryingamount of
theinterest, or the maximum exposuretoloss.

Interest rate swaps, foreign exchange derivatives that are not complex and which expose the Company to
insignificant credit risk by being senior in the payment waterfall of a securitisation and derivatives that are
determined tointroducerisk or variabilityto a structured entity are not considered to be an interest in an entity
and have been excluded fromthe disclosures below.

Maximumexposure to loss

Unless otherwise specified, the Company's maximum exposure to loss is the total of its on balance sheet
positionsand its off balance sheet contractual commitment to providing further finance and the nominal value
of any guarantees provided, the availability of netting and credit protection held. The actual loss, due to the
collateral held by the entities, the availability of netting, credit protectlon held and guarantee from Barclays Bank
Plc, is likely to be immaterial.

The Company has a maximum exposure to loss of £3,306,160,691 (2018: £1,387,171,424) relating to interests in
unconsolidated structured entities. The table below details the maximum exposureto loss of the Company:
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As at 31 December 2019

Nature ofinterest Balance Sheetline item Secured Traded Loans and Total
. Financing  Derivatives Advances

Reverse repurchase Financial assets 2,743,564 - - 2,743,564
agreements mandatorily at fair value
Derivative financial Derivative financial - 4,486 - 4,486
instruments - assets instruments
Loans and other Loans and other - - 557,903 557,903
receivables receivables

Total on balance sheet exposures 2,743,564 4,486 557,903 3,305,953
Derivative notional Off balance sheet - 208 - 208
Maximum exposuretoloss 2,743,564 4,694 557,903 3,306,161

As at 31 December 2018

Nature of interest Balance Sheetline item Secured Traded Loans and Total
Financing  Derivatives Advances

Reverse repurchase Financial assets 1,349,365 - - 1,349,365
agreement mandatorily at fair value
Loans and other Loans and other - - 37,806 37,806
receivables receivables

Total on balance sheet exposures 1,349,365 - 37,806 1,387,171
Derivative notional Off balance sheet - - - -
Maximum exposuretoloss 1,349,365 - 37,806 1,387,171

Secured financing.

The Company routinely entersinto reverse repurchase contracts, stock borrowing and similar arrangements on
normal commercial terms wherethe counterparty to the arrangementis a structured entity. Due to the nature
of these arrangements, especially the transfer of collateral and on-going margining, the Company has minimal
exposure to the performance of the structured entity counterparty.

Traded derivatives

The Company enters into a variety of derivative contracts with structured entities which reference market risk
variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and creditindices amongst other things. Therisk of loss
may be mitigated through on-going margining requirements as well as aright to cash flows from the structured
entity which are senior in the payment waterfall. Such margining requirements are consistent with market
practice for many derivative arrangements and in line with the Company’s normal credit policies

Notional amounts of the derivative arrangements have been provided as a better indication of the risks
associated with these instruments rather than the size of the structured entities to which the Company has
exposure.

Short termtraded interests

The Company buys and sells interests in structured entities as part of its trading activities. Such interests are
typically heldindividually or as part of a larger portfolio for no more than 9o days. In such cases, the Company
typically hasno other involvement with the structured entity other than the securitiesit holds as part of trading
activities and its maximum exposure to lossisrestricted to the carrying value of the asset.
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27. Fair value of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date of recognition and, depending on the
classification of the asset or liability, may continue to be held at fair value either through profitor loss or other
comprehensiveincome. The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would bereceivedto sell an asset
or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transactionbetween market participants at the measurement date.

Wherever possible, fair valueis determined by reference to aquoted market price for that instrument. For many
of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, especially derivatives, quoted prices are not available, and
valuation models are used to estimate fair value. The models calculate the expectedcash flows under the terms
of each specific contract, and then discountthese values back to a present value. These models use as their basis
independently sourced market parameters including, for example, interest rate yield curves, equities and
commodities prices, option volatilities and currency rates.

For financial liabilities held at fair value, the carrying amount reflects the effect on fair value of changesinown
credit spreads derived from observable market data, such as spreads on Barclaysissued bonds or credit default
swaps (CDS). Most market parameters are either directly observable or are implied frominstrumentprices. The
model may perform numerical proceduresin the pricing such asinterpolationwheninput values do not directly
correspond to the most actively traded market trade parameters.

On initial recognition, it is presumed that the transaction price is the fair value unless there is observable
information available in an activemarketto the contrary. The best evidence of an instrument’s fair value on initia
recognitionis typically the transaction price. However, if fair value can be evidenced by comparison with other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument, or is based on a valuation technique whose
inputs include only data from observable markets, then the instrument should be recognised at the fair value
derived from such observable market data.

For valuations that have made use of unobservable inputs, the difference between the modelvaluation and the
initial transaction price (‘Day One profit’) isrecognised in profit or loss either:
- ona straight-line basis over the term of the transaction; or over the period until all model inputs will
become observable where appropriate; or
- releasedin full when previouslyunobservable inputs become observable.

In case of ‘Day one loss’ the same isrecognised upfrontin the profitor loss.

Various factorsinfluence the availability of observable inputs and these may vary from product to product and
change over time. Factorsinclude the depth of activity in the relevant market, the type of product, whetherthe
product is new and not widely tradedin the marketplace, the maturity of market modelling and the nature of
the transaction (bespoke or generic). To the extent that valuationis based on models or inputs that are not
observable in the market, the determination of fair value can be more subjective, dependant on thesignificance
of the unobservable input to the overall valuation. Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best
information available, for example by reference to similar assets, similar maturities or other analytica
techniques. '

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The valuation of financial instruments often involves a significant degree of judgement and complexity, in
particular where valuation models make use of unobservable inputs (‘Level 3’ assets and liabilities). This note
provides information on these instruments, including the related unrealised gains and losses recognised in the
period, adescription of significant valuation techniques and unobservableinputs, and a sensitivity analysis.
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Valuation

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurementrequires an entity to classify its assets and liabilities according to a hierarchy that
reflects the observability of significant market inputs. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined
below.

Quoted market prices — Level1

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 1 if their valueis observable in an active market. Such instruments are
valued by reference to unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the
quoted price isreadilyavailable, and the price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions. An
active market is one in which transactions occur with sufficient volume and frequency to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

Valuation technique using observable inputs - Level 2

Assets and liabilities classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whose inputs are observable in an active
market. Valuations based on observable inputsinclude assets and liabilities such as swaps and forwards which
are valued using market standard pricing techniques, and options that are commonly traded in markets where
all the inputs to the market standard pricing models are observable. Level 2 valuation techniques can also include
unobservable inputs that are not significant of the fair value measurementin its entirety.

Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs - Level 3

Assetsand liabilities are classified as Level 3 if their valuation incorporates significantinputs that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). A valuationinputis considered observable if it can be directly
observed from transactions in an active market, or if there is compelling external evidence demonstrating an
executable exit price. Unobservable input levels are generally determined via reference to observable inputs,
historical observations or using other analytical techniques.

The following table shows the Company’s assets and liabilities that are held at fair value disaggregated by
valuation technique (fair value hierarchy)and balance sheetclassification:

As at 31 December 2019 Quoted Observable Significant Total
market inputs  unobservable
prices (Level (Level 2) inputs
1)
(Level 3)

Financial assets

Trading portfolio assets 18,796,730 885,660 218,643 19,901,033
Derivative financial assets - 5,040,071 496,391 5,536,462
Financial assets at fair value - 33,982,550 - 33,982,550
Total assets 18,796,730 39,908,281 715,034 59,420,045
Quoted Observable Significant Total

market prices inputs  unobservabl

(Level 1) (Level 2) einputs

(Level 3)

Financial liabilities

Trading portfolio liabilities (10,707,775) (160,698) (8) (10,868,481)
Derivative financial liabilities : - (6,586,558) (441,553) - (7,028,111)
Financial liabilities at fair value - (40,737,458) - (40,737,458)
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Total liabilities (10,707,775)  (47,484,714) (441,561) (58,634,050)
As at 31 December 2018 Quoted Observable Significant Total
market prices inputs  unobservable
(Level 1) (Level 2) inputs
(Level 3)
Financial assets
Trading portfolio assets 11,760,245 622,293 7,089 12,389,627
Derivative financial assets - 6,273,791 539,561 6,813,352
Financial assets at fair value - 30,859,949 - 30,859,949
Total assets 11,760,245 37,756,033 546,650 50,062,928
Financial liabilities
Trading portfolio liabilities (12,525,198) (122,333) (268) (12,647,799)
Derivative financial liabilities - (6,659,181) (657,755) (7,316,936)
Financial liabilities at fair value - (30,999,585) - (30,999,585)
Total liabilities (12,525,198)  (37,784,099) (658,023) (50,964,320)

Level 3 movement analysis

The following table summarises the movements in the level 3 balances during the year. The table shows gains
and losses and includes amounts for all assets and liabilities transferred to and from level 3 during the year.
Trading portfoliois disclosed on netbasis as the Trading portfolio liabilities balance isimmaterial. Transfers have
beenreflected asifthey have taken place at the beginningof the year.

Analysis of movementsin level 3 assets and liabilities

Total gains and
losses in the

As at1 year recognised As at 31
January . inthe income Transfers December
2019 Purchases Sales  Settlements Issues statement In/ (out) 2019
Net Trading portfolio
assets 6,821 4,892 (2,661) 1) - 36,132 173,452 218,635
Net derivative financial
instruments
(Equity derivatives) (118,194) 58,501 - 5,400 (96,912) 206,303 (261) 54,837
Total (111,373) 63,393 (2,661) 5,399 (95,912) 242,435 173,191 273,472
Total gains and
losses in the
year
As at1 recognised in As at 31
January the income Transfers December
2018 Purchases  Sales Settlements Issues statement In/ (out) 2018

Net Trading portfolio
assets 29,767 3,936 - (25) - (264) (26,593) 6,821
Net derivative financial
instruments
(Equity derivatives) (131,281) 172,922 - 95,583 (325,624) 10,621 59,585  (118,194)
Total (101,514) 176,858 - 95,558 (325,624) 10,357 32,992 (111,373)
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Valuation techniques and sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysisis performed on products withsignificant unobservableinputs (Level 3) to generate arange
of reasonably possible alternative valuations. The sensitivity methodologies applied take account of the nature
of valuation techniques used, as well as the availability and reliability of observable proxy and historical dataand
the impact of using alternative models.

Sensitivities are dynamically calculated on amonthly basis. The calculation is based on range or spread dataof a
reliable reference source or a scenario based on relevant market analysis alongside the impact of using
alternative models. Sensitivities are calculated without reflecting the impact of any diversification in the
portfolio.

The valuation techniques used for the material products within Levels 2 and 3, and observability and sensitivity
analysis for products within Level 3 are described below.

Equityderivatives

Description: These are derivatives linked to equity indices and single names. This category includes exchange
traded and OTCequity derivatives including vanilla and exotic options.

Valuation: The valuations of OTC equity derivatives are determined using industry standard models. Input
parametersinclude stock prices, dividends, volatilities, interestrates, equity repurchase agreement curves and,
for multi-asset products, correlations.

Observability: In general, input parameters are deemed observable up to liquid maturities which are determined
separately for each parameter and underlying, Unobservable model inputs are determined by reference to liquid
market instruments and applying extrapolationtechniques to matchthe appropriaterisk profile.

Level 3 sensitivity: Sensitivity is estimated based on the dispersion of consensus data services either directly or
through proxies.

As part of risk management processes, an analysis is performed on products with significant unobservable
parameters (Level 3) to generate a range of reasonably possible alternative valuations. The effect of stressing
unobservable inputs to a range of reasonably possible altematives, alongside considering the impact of using
alternative models, would be toincrease fair values by up to £31,452,000 (2018:£37,437,000) or to decrease fair
valuesby up to £32,639,000 (2018:£37,437,000) with substantially all the potential effectimpacting theincome
statement rather than reserves. The stresses applied take account of the nature of valuation techniques used,
as well as the availability and reliability of observable proxy and historic data.

Unrecognised gains as a result of the use of valuation models using unobservable inputs
The amount thathas yet to be recognised inincomethatrelates to the difference between the transaction price,

i.e. the fair value at initial recognition, and the amount that would have arisen had valuation models using
unobservable inputs been used oninitial recognition, less amounts subsequently recognised, was as follows:

2019 2018
As at 1January 23,120 29,585
Additionsinyear 13,172 5,216
Releasesinyear (13,447) (4,570)
Amortisationsin year (15,519) (7,011)
As at 31 December 7,326 23,120
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Significant unobservable inputs

The following table discloses the valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs for Derivative
Financial Instruments at fair value and classified as Level 3 along with the range of values used for those
significant unobservable inputs:

2019 2018
Range Range
Valuation Significant unobservable
technique(s) inputs Min Max Min Max Units
Option model Equity volatility 1 140 7 45 %
Equity-equity correlation (16) 100 0 100 %
Discounted cash flow  Discounted margin (138) 313 (171) 301 bps

Valuation control framework

The valuation control framework covers fair value positions and is a key control in ensuring the material accuracy
of valuations. The valuation control function within Finance isresponsible for oversight of prudent
and fair value adjustments and escalationof valuationissues.

Governance over the valuation process is the responsibility of the Valuation Committee, and this is the
governance forum to which valuation issues are escalated. The Valuation Committee meets on amonthly basis
andis responsible for overseeingvaluation policy and practice within the Barclays Group.

Price verification uses independently sourced data that is deemed most representative of the market. The
characteristics against which the data source is assessed are independence, reliability, consistency with other
sourcesand evidence that the datarepresentsan executable price. The most current data available at balance
sheet date is used. Where significant variances are noted in the independent price verification process, an
adjustment is made to fair value. Additional fair value adjustments may be made to reflect such factors as bid-
offer spreads, market data uncertainty, model limitations and counterparty risk.

Financial assets and liabilities not held at fair value

The fair value is an estimate of the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. As a wide range of valuation
techniques are often available, it may not be appropriate to directly compare this fair value information to
independent market or other financial institutions. Different valuation methodologies and assumptions can have
a significant impact on fair values which are based on unobservable inputs.

There isno difference between thefair value and carrying amount for assets and liabilities not heldat fair value.

The following tables show the fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost analysed
by fair value hierarchy and balance sheet classification: '

Fair Value  Quoted market Observableinputs Significant

As at 31 December 2019 prices(Level1) (Level2) unobservableinputs
(Level3)

Loans and otherreceivables 33,523,087 - 33,523,087 -
Other financial assets 72,527 - 72,527 -
Total Assets 33,595,614 - 33,595,614 .
Borrowings 26,210,586 379,449 25,831,137 -
Repurchase agreements 7,522,208 - ' 7,522,208 -
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Other financial liabilities 312,104 - 312,104 -
Total Liabilities 34,044,898 379,449 33,665,449 -
As at 31 December 2018 Fair Value Quotedmarket Observableinputs Significant
prices(Level1) (Level2)  unobservable inputs

(Level3)

Loans and other receivables 34,710,814 - 34,710,814 -
Other financial assets 135,321 - 135,321 -
Total Assets 34,846,135 - 34,846,135 -
Borrowings 25,946,632 145,834 25,800,798 -
Repurchase agreements 7,028,049 - 7,028,049 -
Other financial liabilities 253,096 - 253,096 -
Total Liabilities 33,227,777 145,834 33,081,943 -

Financial assets

The carryingvalue of financial assets held at amortised cost (including loans and otherreceivables and otherlending
such as reverse repurchase agreements) is determined in accordance with therelevant accounting policy (Note 3).

Loans and other receivables

There isminimal difference betweenthe fair value and carrying amount due to the shorttermnature of the lending
and the high credit quality of counterparties.

The fair value of loans and advances for the purpose of this disclosure is derived from discounting expected cash
flows in a way that reflects the current market price for lending to issuers of similar credit quality and hence the
balancesare classified aslevel 2. Settlementbalances and cash collateral are also classified aslevel 2.

Reverserepurchase agreements

The fair value of reverse repurchase agreements approximates carrying amount as these balances are generally
short dated. These balancesare thereforeclassified as level 2.

Financial liabilities

The carrying value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost (including customer accounts and other deposits
such asrepurchase agreements and subordinated liabilities) is determined in accordance with the accounting policy
(Note 3).

Repurchase agreements

The fair value of repurchase agreements approximates carrying amounts as these balances are generally short
dated. These balances are therefore classifiedaslevel 2.

Borrowings

The fair value hierarchy for borrowings is determined by reference to the observability of inputsinto the fair value
models. Inputs into the fair value models are considered observable, for example LIBOR or the Bank of England
base rate, and hence the balances are classified as level 2. Settlement Balances and Bank Loans are classified as level
2. Nostro Liabilities are classifiedaslevel 1.
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28. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Inaccordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, the Companyreports financial assets and financial liabilities on anet basis on the balance sheet only it
there is alegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The following table shows theimpact of nettingarrangementson:

e all financial assets and liabilities that are reported neton the balance sheet

e allderivative financial instruments and reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending and borrowing agreements that are
subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements, but do not qualify for balance sheet netting. )

The table identifies those amounts that are covered by enforceable netting arrangements (offsetting arrangements and financial collateral) but do not qualify for
netting under the requirements of IAS32 described above.

The ‘Net amounts’ presented below are notintended to represent the Company’s actual exposure to creditrisk, as a variety of credit mitigation strategies are employed
in addition to netting and collateral arrangements.

Amounts subject to enforceable netting arrangements
Related amounts not offset?

Amounts available for Amounts not subject

Balance sheet netting on the balance Financial Financial to enforceable netting

As at 31 December 2019 total' sheet instruments collateral Net amount arrangements3
@ ®) © @] (=(0)+()+(d) H=@-®
Derivative financial assets 5,536,462 5,493,903 (5,493,176) - 727 42,559
Reverse repurchase agreements 29,601,588 29,410,814 - (29,047,738) 363,076 190,774
Total Assets ‘ 35,138,050 34,904,717 (5/493,2176) (29,047,738) 363,803 233,333
Derivative financial liabilities (7,028,111) (6,893,691) 5,493,176 - (1,400,515) (134,420)
Repurchase agreements (43,745,284) (43,712,766) - 43,594,404 (118,362) (32,518)
Total Liabilities (50,773,395) (50,606,457) 5,493,176 43,594,404 (1,518,877) (166,938)
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Amounts subject to enforceable netting arrangements

Related amounts not offset?

Amounts available for

Amounts not subject

Balance sheet netting on the balance Financial Financial to enforceable netting

As at 31 December 2018 total’ sheet instruments collateral Net amount arrangements3
C)] (b) O (d) (e)=(b)+(c)+(d) (f)=(a)~(b)

Derivative financial assets 6,813,352 6,809,078 (6,800,002) - 9,076 4,274
Reverse repurchase agreements 26,886,313 26,802,558 - (26,772,737) 29,821 83,755
Total Assets 33,699,665 33,611,636 (6,800,002) (26,772,737) 38,897 88,029
Derivative financial liabilities (7,316,936) (7,288,285) 6,800,002 - (488,283) (28,651)
Repurchase agreements (35,082,137) (35,035,042) - 34,996,218 (38,824) (47,095)
Total Liabilities (42,399,073) (42,323,327) 6,800,002 34,996,218 (527,107) (75,746)

enforceable netting arrangements.
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Derivative assets and liabilities

The ‘Financial instruments’ column identifies financial assets and liabilities that are subject to set off under
netting agreements, such as the ISDA master agreement or derivative exchange or clearing counterparty
agreements, whereby all outstanding transactions with the same counterparty can be offset and close-out
netting applied across all outstanding transaction covered by the agreements if an event of default or other
predeterminedeventsoccur.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Financial collateral typically comprises highly liquid securities which are legally transferred and can be liquidated
inthe event of counterparty default.

29. Financial risks

The Company’s activities are exposed to avarietyof financial risks. These are creditrisk, liquidity riskand market
risk (whichincludes foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

Consequently, the Company devotes considerable resources to maintaining effective controls to manage,
measure and mitigate each of these risks, and regularly reviewsits risk management procedures and systems to
ensure that they continue to meet the needs of the business. The Company uses derivative financial instruments
tohedge certainrisk exposures.

The Board of Directors monitors the Company’s financial risks and has responsibility for ensuring effective risk
managementand control.

Credit Risk of the Company suffering financial loss if any of its customers, clients or market
counterparties fail to fulfill their contractual obligations to the Company. See Note 31 (Credit
risk). ,

Liquidity Risk that the Company, although solvent, either does not have sufficient financial resources

available to meet itsobligation as they fall due, or can secure such resourcesonly at excessive
cost. Thisalso resultsin afirm’s inability to meetregulatory liquidity requirements. See Note 32
(Liquidity risk). '

Capital Risk that the Companyhasinsufficient capital resources, which could lead to (i) a failure to meet
regulatory requirements; or (ii}an inability to support business activity and growth.

Market Risk of loss arising from potential adverse changes in the value of the Company’s assets and
liabilities from fluctuation in market variables including, but not limited to, interest rates,
foreign exchange, equity prices, dividend expectation, implied volatility and asset correlations.
See Note 30 (Marketrisk management).
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Further MarketRisk Factors

Risk factor Description

Foreignexchange Impactof changesinforeign exchangeratesand volatilities.

Interestrate Changes in the level or shape of interest rate expectations can impact prices of interest
rate sensitive assets, such asbonds and derivativesinstruments like interest rate swaps.

Equity Risk due to changesin equity prices, volatilities and dividend yields, for example as part of
trading activities.

Spread Difference between bond yields and swapsrates that arises whenabusiness has positions
in both bonds and interest ratefinflation derivatives instruments. Both assets may trade at

different levels but are fundamentally exposed to similar risk.

Basis The impact of changes in interest rate tenor basis (e.g. the basis between swaps vs 3M
LIBOR and swaps vs 6M LIBOR) and cross currency basis and is primarily generated as a
result of trading activities.

30. Marketrisk

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from potential adverse changesin the value of the Company’s assets and
liabilities from fluctuation in market variables including, but not limited to, interest rates, foreign exchange,
equity prices, dividend expectation, implied volatility and asset correlations. The Company has exposure to
market risk through traded and non-traded market risk and can be impacted by changes in both the level and
volatility of prices e.g. interestrates, credit spreads, equityprices and foreignexchangerates. The Company has
implementedarange of risk management methods to mitigate and control these and other market risks to which
the Company is exposed. However, it is difficult to predict with accuracy the changes in economic or market
conditions and to anticipate the effects that such changes could have on the Company’s financial performance.

Regulatory Value at Risk (‘RegulatoryVaR’)

Regulatory VaR is an estimate of the potential loss arising from unfavourable market movements calibrated to
a 99% confidence level over a10-day holding period.

Modelreview and Regulatory Back - testing

Value at Risk is an important market risk measurement and control tool for the Company and is regularly
assessed and reviewed intemally by Group Executive and dedicated Model Risk Management(MRM) function.
Barclays Croup’s VaR model has been approved by the PRA to calculate regulatory capital for designated trading
book portfolios. '

There are anumber of regulatory measures which the Companyhas permission to use in calculating regulatory
capital (internal models approval). These include Regulatory VaR, Stressed VaR (“SVaR”)and Incremental Risk
Charge (“IRC”).

Regulatory back-testing counts the number of days when a loss (as defined by the PRA) exceeds the
corresponding VaR estimate, measured at the 99% regulatory confidence level. The number of back-testing
exceptionsisnot considered asindicating any concerns with the VaR model. The section on Model review and

back testingis unaudited.
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The table below shows the regulatory VaR statistics for the Company’s trading activities:

o 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Regulatory VaR (99%) Average High Low Average High Low
Interest rate risk 550 982 273 434 2,916 151
Spreadrisk - - - 1 155 -
Equitiesrisk 3,443 9,013 1,587 3,324 13,350 1,643
Foreign exchangerisk 958 2,782 248 1,305 4,820 265
Basisrisk 915 2,674 381 1,154 6,470 245
Diversification effect (2,211) n/a n/a (2,236) n/a n/a
Total RegulatoryVaR 3,655 9,324 1,979 3,982 13,869 2,101

Note: The high and low regulatory VaR figures reported for eachcategory did not necessarily occur onthe same
day as the high and low regulatory VaR reported as a whole. Consequently, a diversification effect balance for
the high and low regulatory VaR figures would not be meaningfuland is therefore omitted from the above table.
Basisrisk reportedin 2019 includes the cross currency basis risk.

Stressed Value at Risk (‘SVaR’)

SVaR isan estimate of the potential loss arising from unfavourable market movementsin a stressed environment
andis identical to Regulatory VaR, but calibrated over aone-year stressed period.

For regulatory capital calculation purposes the Company computes a market risk capital requirement based on
aten-day, 99% VaR metric calibratedto a period of significant financial stress. This StressedVaR (‘SVaR’) capitd
requiremernt is added to the market risk capital requirement arising from regulatory VaR and the Incrementa
Risk Charge on an undiversified basis.

Incremental Risk Charge (‘IRC)

IRCis an estimate of the incremental risk arising from rating migrations and defaults beyond what is already
capturedin Regulatory VaR and SVaR for the non-<orrelation trading portfolio. IRCmeasures thisriskat 2 99.9%
confidence level with a one year holding period and applies to all positions in scope for specific risk including
sovereign exposure.

£'000
2019 2019 2019 2018 Average 2018 2018
Average High tow High Low
SVaR (99%) 8,127 16,688 3,261 6,357 10,721 3,285
IRC(99.9%) 1,680 1,985 1,521 1,862 3,884 1,342

Management of risks not fully captured in models, including Risks not in VaR (RNIVs)

In some instances, the Regulatory VaR model may not appropriately measure some market risks, especially
where market moves are not directlyobservable via prices, the Company has policies to ensure that add-ons are
applied where risksare not captured by the model. RNIVsrefer to those key risks that are not captured, or not
adequately captured, in RegulatoryVaR and SVaR.

31.  Creditrisk

Credit riskis the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Company’s customers or market counterparties
fail to fulfill their contractual obligations to the Company.

Collateral canbe animportant mitigant of credit risk and the Company commonly obtains security for the funds
advanced. When collateral is deemed appropriate, the Company takes a specific, agreed class of collateral.
Alternatively, the Company may put in place other forms of credit risk mitigation, such as the use of credit
derivatives.
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Credit risk also arises through downgrading of counterparties whose credit instruments the Company may be
holding, causing the value of those assets to fall. Furthermore, credit risk is manifested as country risk where
difficulties experienced by the country in which the exposure is domiciled may impede payment or reduce the
value of the asset or where the counterparty may be the country itself. Settlement risk is another special form
of credit risk whichis the possibility thatthe Company may pay a counterparty, for example -abankin aforeign
exchange transaction, and fail to receive the corresponding settlementin return.

The Company employs arange of risk measurement techniques and methodologies to mitigate credit risk. The
majority of the Company’sloans and other receivables are secured by collateral in the form of securities or are
with other Barclays entities. The Company has master netting agreementsin place whichreduces the exposure
inrespect of derivative balances.

This analysis and all subsequent analyses of credit risk include only financial assets subject to credit risk. They
exclude other financial assets, mainly equity securities held in the trading portfolio as wellas non-financial assets.

Credit risk concentrations by geographical sector

The geographical analysisis based on the location of the customer to which thelendingis made.

United Europe Americas Asia Africa & Total
As at 31 December 2019 Kingdom Middle East
Cash and cash equivalents 222,777 158,445 14,568 360,038 7,630 763,458
Trading portfolio assets (debt) 63,305 185,489 25,205 803 73,394 348,196
Derivative financial assets 5,488,281 48,181 - - - 5,536,462
Loans and other receivables 27,118,039 1,050,476 1,504,198 3,723,514 126,860 33,523,087
Other financial assets 29,886 29,875 6,089 6,404 273 72,527
Financial assets mandatorily at 20,547,182 1,650,121 8,703,688 3,024,324 57,235 33,982,550
fair value
Total Assets 53,469,470 3,122,587 10,253,748 7,115,083 265,392 74,226,280
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L3

As at 31 December 2018 United Europe Americas Asia Africa & Total
Kingdom Middle
East

Cash and cash equivalents 26,407 279,978 66,533 198,848 10,579 582,345
Trading portfolio assets (debt) 24,351 183,337 33,066 13,526 17,903 272,183
Derivative financial assets 6,813,307 41 4 - - 6,813,352
Loans and other receivables 22,432,232 853,114 900,434 10,486,291 38,743 34,710,814
Other financial assets 103,590 22,567 4,331 4,578 255 135,321
Financial assets mandatorily at 18,605,362 1,068,662 7,213,970 3,915,382 56,573 30,859,949
fair value 2

Total Assets 48,005,249 2,407,699 8,218,338 14,618,625 124,053 73,373,964

22018 figures of financial assets mandatorily at fair value restated to reclassify £3,859m from Africa & Middle East to Asia

geographical sector.
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Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk concentration by industrial sector

Asat 31 Government  Financial Financial Manufac- Mining& Property  Energy Wholesale Transport Postal & Business Total
December institutions  “institutions turing  Quarrying & water & retail communic- & other

2019 - Bank - Others distribution ations  Services

Cash and cash - 480,123 283,335 - - - - - 763,458
equivalents

Trading portfolio 1,866 15,052 13,728 79,032 99,279 17,741 4,574 22,289 10,820 55,697 28,118 348,196
assets (debt)

Derivative financial - 5,493,655 42,807 - - - - - - - 5,536,462
assets

Loans aﬁd other 1,760 25,086,592 8,315,915 - - - - - - 118,820 33,523,087
receivables

Other financial - 23,190 49,337 - - - - - - 72,527
assets

Financial assets 21,402,021 12,580,529 - 33,982,550
mandatority at fair

value

Total Assets 3,626 52,500,633 21,285,651 79,032 99,279 17,741 4,574 22,289 10,820 55,697 146,938 74,226,280
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Asat 31 Government  Financial Financial Manufac- Mining& Property Energy Wholesale Transport  Postal & Business Total
December institutions institutions turing  Quarrying & water & retail communic- & other

2018 - Bank - Others distribution ations  services

Cash and cash 539,818 42,527 - - - - - - - 582,345
equivalents

Trading portfolio 1,984 8,655 10,694 80,596 - 31,152 39,611 5,725 21,206 21,702 50,858 272,183
assets (debt)

Derivative financial - 6,813,352 - - - - - - - 6,813,352
assets

Loans and other - 18,668,154 16,028,589 767 3,954 194 - 215 8,941 34,710,814
receivables

Other financial 20,908 114,413 - - - - - - - 135,321
assets

Financial assets - 18,909,589 11,950,360 - - - - - - - 30,859,949
mandatorily

at fair value

Total Assets 1,984 44,960,476 28,146,583 81,363 35106 39,805 5,725 21,206 21,917 59,799 73,373,964
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Trading portfolio assets/financial assets designated at fair value - The Company’s practiceis to take into account
credit risk when valuing these assets. The Company therefore expects little additional credit risk on these
instruments, other than the credit risk component of trading market risk on these instruments. The trading

market riskis monitored through the Daily Value at Risk (‘DVaR’) methodology.

In addition, many of the trading portfolios held are of very high quality, and include, for example, treasury bills
and government bonds.

Derivative financial instruments — In addition to including the credit risk on these instruments in the DVaR
methodology, the Company also uses anumber of other techniques toreduceits exposure to credit risk on these
instruments. These techniques include masternetting agreements, which do not qualify for offset under IAS 32
but which give a legally enforceable right to net receivables and payables with the same counterparty, and the
obtaining of cash collateral from counterparties who have a net exposure to the Company through Collatera
Service Agreements.

Loansand other receivables - Loans and other receivables are spread across both geographical regions, maturity
andindividual counterparties. Analysis by geography, industry, staging analysis, L&A and impairment movement
over time and maturity, based on the location of counterparties, may be found on Note 31 on pages 56 to 62.

Financial assets at fair value mainly include Reverse repurchase agreements largely secured by obtaining
collateral from counterparties. Thelevelof collateral is monitored daily for the collateral calls made or required.

The Company has secured aguarantee of £1bn(2018: £2.5bn) fromits parent company Bardays Bank Plc, to cover
exposures arising from counterpartycredit risk. The guarantee would be applied against all exposures covered
under Article 389 of the CRR, exceptin cases wherethe eligible counterparty isa direct or indirect subsidiary of
Barclays PLC, and is not a sovereign which would receive a 0% risk weighting underthe standardised approach
in each case as determined bythe Company. The exposuresincude the effects of netting where thereis amaster
netting agreement in place or where the Company holds cash collateral. The guarantee does not expire unless
mutually agreed between the Company and Barclays Bank Plc to terminate this guarantee arrangement.
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Financial assets at amortised cost staging analysis

Stage 2
Not <=30 >30
As at 31 December 2019 Stage1 past gzﬁ ?)23;: Total Stage 3 Total
' due due due
Gross exposure £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 763,458 - - - - - 763,458
Loans and other receivables 33,523,241 2 - - - - 33,523,241
Other financial assets 72,527 - - - - - 72,527
Total 34,359,226 - - - - - 34,359,226
Impairment Allowance
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - -
Loans and other receivables (154) - - - - - (154)
Total (154) - - - - - (154)
Net exposure
Cash and cash equivalents 763,458 - - - - - 763,458
Loans and otherreceivables 33,523,087 - - - - - 33,523,087
Other financial assets 72,527 - - - - - 72,527
Total 34,359,072 - - - - - 34,359,072
Stage 2
Not <=30 >30
; days days
As at 31 December 2018 Stage1 past past past Total Stage 3 Total
due due due
Gross exposure £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 582,345 - - - - - 582,345
Loans and other receivables 34,711,071 - - - - - 34,711,071
Other financial assets 135,321 - - - - - 135,321
Total 35,428,737 - - - - - 35,428,737
impairment Allowance
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - -
Loans and other receivables (257) - - - - - (257)
Total (257) - - - - - (257)
Net exposure
Cash and cash equivalents 582,345 - - - - - 582,345
Loans and other receivables 34,710,814 - - - - - 34,710,814
Other financial assets 135,321 - - - - - 135,321
Total 35,428,480 - - - - - 35,428,480
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Financial assets at amortised cost - Movement in gross exposure and impairment allowance

STAGE 1 STAGE 2 STAGE 3 Total
£000 Exposure Impairment Exposure impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment
allowance allowance allowance allowance
Balance as at1 January 2019 35,428,737 (257) - - - - 35,428,737 (257)
New financial assets originated or purchased 34,359,226 (12) - - - - 34,359,226 (12)
Net drawdowns [ repayments [ risk parameter changes - 14 - - - - - 14
Other movements - 1 - - - - - 1
Asset derecognised due to disposals (35,428,737) - - - - (35,428,737) -
Balance as at31 December 2019 34,359,226 (154) - - - - 34,359,226 (154)
Reconciliation of ECL movement to impairment
(charge)/release for the period
ECL movement excluding assets derecognised due to
disposals and write-off 103 ) ) 103
Income statement (charge)/release for the period 103 - - 103
STAGE 1 STAGE 2 STAGE 3 Total
Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment
allowance allowance allowance allowance
Balanceas at1January 2018 28,997,651 (213) - - - - 28,997,651 (213)
New financial assets originated or purchased 35,428,737 (132) - - - - 35,428,737 (132)
Net drawdowns/repayments/risk parameter changes - 89 - - - - - 89
Other movements - ) - - - - - )
Asset derecognised due to disposals (28,997,651) - - - - - (28,997,651) -
Balance as at31 December 2018 35,428,737 (257) - - - - 35,428,737 (257)
Reconciliation of ECL movement to impairment
(charge)/release for the period
ECL movement excduding assets derecognised due to
disposals and write-off (44) ) ) (44)
Income statement (charge)/release for the period (44) - - (44)
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(a) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

As at 31 December 2019 Strong  Satisfactory Higher risk . Total
Cash and cash equivalents 756,509 6,949 . 763,458
Trading portfolio as‘sets (debt) 227,572 114,164 6,460 348,196
Derivative financial assets 5,493,655 42,807 - 5,536,462
Loans and other receivables 32,037,540 1,485,547 - 33,523,087
Otherassets 61,047 11,480 - 72,527
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 32,751,017 1,231,533 - 33,982,550
Total Assets 71,327,340 2,892,480 6,460 74,226,280
As at 31 December 2018 Strong  Satisfactory Higher risk Total
Cash and cash equivalents 520,982 61,363 - 582,345
Trading portfolio assets (debt) 194,425 76,538 1,220 272,183
Derivative financial assets ' 6,799,537 13,815 - 6,813,352
Loans and other receivables 33,391,195 1,319,619 - 34,710,814
Otherassets 33,640 101,681 - 135,321
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 29,657,868 1,202,080 - 30,859,948
Total Assets 70,597,647 2,775,096 1,220 73,373,963

Strong - thereisavery highlikelihood of the asset beingrecoveredin full.

Satisfactory — whilst thereis ahigh likelihood that the asset will be recovered and therefore of no cause for
concernto the Company, the asset may not be collateralized or may relateto unsecuredloans.

Higher risk — there is concern over the obligor’s ability to make payments when due. However, these have
not yet converted to actual delinquency. The borrower or counterparty is continuing to make paymentwhen
due andis expectedto settleall outstandingprincipal and interest.
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Maximum Exposure to Credit risk

Whilst the Company’s maximum exposure to creditriskis the carrying value of the assets, in most casesthe likely
exposure isfar less due to offsetting collateral, other netting and set off to mitigate the Company’s exposure.

Maximum  Netting and
As at 31 December 2019 Exposures set-off Collateral Net Exposure
Cash and cash equivalents 763,458 - - 763,458
Trading portfolio assets (debt) 348,196 - - 348,196
Derivative financial instruments 5,536,462 (5,493,176) - 43,286
Loans and other receivables 33,523,087 (24,141,837) - 9,381,250
Other assets 72,527 - - 72,527
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 33,982,550 (1,525,635) (31,691,318) 765,597
Total 74,226,280 (31,160,648) (31,691,318) 11,374,314
Maximum Netting and
As at 31 December 2018 Exposures set-off Collateral Net Exposure
Cash and cash equivalents 582,345 - - 582,345
Trading portfolio assets (debt) 272,183 - - 272,183
Derivative financial instruments 6,813,352 (6,800,002) - 13,350
Loans and other receivables 34,710,814 (23,113,483) - 11,597,331
Other assets 135,321 - - 135,321
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 30,859,949 (1,054,595) (28,787,268) 1,018,085
Total 73,373,964 (30,968,080) (28,787,268) 13,618,615
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32. Liquidityrisk
Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity riskis the risk that the Company’s cash and committed facilities may be insufficient to meet its debts as
they fall due. The Company has the financial support of the parentundertaking Barclays Bank Plg, it also maintains
banking facilities with Barclays Bank Plc. These facilities are designed to ensure the Company has sufficient
available resourcesto meetits payments obligations as they fall due or, although solvent, only being able to meet
these obligations at excessive cost. Additionally, resulting in the risk of the Company not meetingits regulatory
liquidity requirements.

Barclays Plc has a comprehensive Liquidity Risk Management Framework (the Liquidity Framework) for managing
the Barclays Group’s liquidity risk. The Liquidity Framework is delivered via a combination of policy formation,
review and governance, analysis, stress testing, limit setting and monitoring. The Company maintains a mixture of
long term and short term committed facilities, including financial support from the parent, Barclays Bank Plc, that
are designed to ensure the Company has sufficient available funds for operations.
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Contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2019 Ondemand . Not more Over three Over six Over one Over three Over five Over Total
than three months but months but year butnot  years but not years but not ten years
months not more not more more than more than more than
than six than one year three years five years ten years

, months
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 763,458 - - - - 763,458
Trading portfolio assets 19,901,033 : - - - - 19,901,033
Derivative financial assets 5,536,462 - - - - - - 5,536,462
Loans and other receivables 21,673,983 11,255,176 137,903 405,400 - 50,625 - 33,523,087
Financial assets at fair value
through Income statement - 33,458,782 4,346 18,990 352,813 89,087 57,602 930 33,982,550
Other financial assets - 72,527 - - 72,527
Total Assets 47,874,936 44,786,485 142,249 424,390 352,813 139,712 57,602 930 93,779,117
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Over three

As at 31 December 2019 On demand Not more Over six Over one Over three Over five Over Total
than three  months but  months but not  year butnot  years but not years but not ten years
months not more more more than more than more than
than six than one year three years five years ten years
months
Liabilities
Trading portfolio liabilities (10,868,481) - - - - - (10,868,481)
Derivative financial liabilities (7,028,111) - - - - - - - (7,028,111)
Repurchase agreements R (7,522,208) R . R _ R (7,522,208)
vBorrowin S
¢ (14,914,990)  (9,662,455) (339.778) (549,954) (392,790) (50,619) (150,000)  (150,000) (26,210,586)
Financial liabilities mandatorily at
fair value 4 (38,840,139)  (1,067,134) (16,313) (196,954) (364,685) (242,490) (9:743) (40,737,458)
Other financia! liabilities - (312,104) - - - - (312,104)
Total Liabilities (32,811,582)  (56,336,906)  (1,406,912) (566,267) (589,744) (415,304) (392,490) (159,743) (92,678,948)
Liquidity excess/(gap) 15,063,354 (11,550,421)  (1,264,663) (141,877) (236,931) (275,592) (334,888) (158,813) 1,100,169
Cumulative liquidity excess 15,063,354 3,512,933 2,248,270 2,106,393 1,869,462 1,593,870 1,258,982 1,100,169 -
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As at 31 December 2018 On demand Not more Over three Over six Overone  Over three Over five Over Total
than three  months but  months but not year but years but  years but not ten years
months not more more not more not more more than

than six than one year  than three than tenyears

months years five years
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 582,345 - - - - - - - 582,345
Trading portfolio assets 12,389,627 - - - - - - 12,389,627
Derivative financial assets 6,813,352 - - - - - - - 6,813,352
Loans and other receivables 19,011,791 15,553,709 34,135 99,528 - - 11,651 - 34,710,814
Financial assets at fair value i 0 388 362 630 » 252 280 688 60,671 6 08 8
through Income statement 30,388,3 3,059 5,777 52, 1835 ,67 964 30,859,94
Other financial assets - 135,321 - - - - 135,321
Total assets 38,797,115 46,077,392 97,194 125,305 252,280 68,835 72,322 964 85,491,407
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As at 31 December 2018 Ondemand Not more Over three Over six Over one Over three Over five Over Total
than three months but  months butnot  year butnot  years but not years but not ten years
months not more more more than more than more than

than six than one year three years five years ten years

months
Liabilities
Trading portfolio liabilities (12,647,799) - - - - - - (12,647,799)
Derivative financial liabilities (7,316,936) - - - - - - - (7,316,936)
Repurchase agreements - - - (7,028,049) - - (7,028,049)
Borrowings (9:336,440)  (16,174,559) (44,095) (227,061) (123,606) (40,871) - (25,946,632)
Financial liabilities mandatorily at
fair value 4 - (29.457:391)  (684,654) (73,363) (239,467) (284,391) (139,286) (121,033) (30,999,585)
Other financial liabilities - (253,096) - - - - - - (253,096)
Total liabilities (29,301,175)  (45,885,046)  (728,749) (300,424) (7:391,422) (284,391) (180,157) (121,033) (84,2192,097)
Liquidity excess/(gap) 9,495,940 192,346 (631,555) (175,119) (7,138,842) (215,556) (107,835) (120,069) 1,299,310
Cumulative liquidity excess 9,495,940 9,688,286 9,056,731 8,881,612 1,742,770 1,527,214 1,419,380 1,299,310 -

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Company under financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date. The amounts
disclosedin the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of all financial liabilities (i.e. nominal values); whereas the Company manages the inherentliquidity risk
based ondiscounted expected cashinflows. The balance inthe below table does not agree directlyto the balancesin the balance sheet as the table incorporatesall cash
flows, on an undiscounted basis, related to bothprincipal as well as those associated withall future coupon payments. Derivative financial instruments held for tradingand
trading portfolio liabilities are included in the on demand columnat theirfair value.
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Contractual undiscounted cash flows

As at 31 December 2019 On demand Not more  Over three Over six Over one Over three Over five Over Total
than three  months but months but  year butnot  years butnot  years but not tenyears
months not more not more more than more than more than

than six  than one year three years five years ten years

months
Liabilities
Trading portfolio liabilities (10,868,481) - - - - - - (10,868,481)
Derivative financial liabilities (7,028,111) - - - - - - - (7,028,111)
Repurchase agreements (7,531,907) - - - - - - (7,531,907)
Borrowings (14,914,990) (9,673114)  (340,552) (550,886) (405,603) (54,028) (164,696)  (164,696) (26,268,565)
Financial liabilities mandatorily at
fair value / (38,846,937)  (1,065,016) (16,390) (196,906) (375:332) (261,520) (10,170) (40,772,271)
Other financial liabilities - (312,104) - - (312,104)
Total liabilities (32,811,582)  (56,364,062)  (1,405,568) (567,276) (602,509) (429,360) (426,216) (174,866) (92,781,439)
Liquidity excess/(gap) 15,063,354 (1,577,577)  (1,263,319) (142,886) (249,696) (289,648) (368,614) (173,936) 997,678
Cumulative liquidity excess 15,063,354 3,485,777 2,222,458 2,079,572 1,829,876 1,540,228 1,171,614 997,678 -
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As at 31 December 2018 Ondemand Not more Over three Over six Over one Over three Over five Over Total
than three months but  months but  year butnot  years butnot years butnot tenyears
months not more not more more than more than more than
than six than one three years five years ten years
months year
Liabilities
Trading portfolio liabilities (12,647,799) - - - - - - - (12,647,799)
Derivative financial liabilities (7,316,936) - - T - - - - (7,316,936)
Repurchase agreements - - - - (7,180,849) - - - (7,180,849)
8 .
orrowings (9,336,440)  (16,174,604) (44,885) (227,966) (125,125) - (47,853) - (25,956,873)
Financial liabilties mandatorly t fai (29.467,957)  (691,976) (73,976) (240,173) (302,089) (152,835)  (141,145) (31,070,151)
Other financial liabilities - (253,096) - - - - - - (253,096)
Total liabilities _{29,301,175)  (45,895,657) (736,861) - (301,942) (7,546,147) (302,089) (200,688) (141,145) (84,425,704)
Liquidity excess/(gap) 9,495,940 181,735 (639,667) (176,637) (7,293,867) (233,254) (128,366)  (140,180) 1,065,704
Cumulative liquidity excess 9,495,940 9,677,674 9,038,007 8,861,370 1,567,504 1,334,250 1,205,884 1,065,704 ~
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Figuresin Pounds Sterling thousand 2019 2018

33. Assetspledged

Assets are pledged as collateral to secure liabilities under repurchase agreements, securitisations and stock
lending arrangements or as collateral posted against derivative marginrequirements. The carrying amount of
financial assets pledged as collateral for liabilities as at 31 December 2019is£10,950m (2018: £7,614m).

Collateral held as security for assets

Under certain transactions, including reverse repurchase agreements and stock borrowing transactions, the
Companyisallowedtoresell or re-pledge the collateral held. The fair value at the balancesheetdate of collatera
accepted andre-pledged to otherswas as follows:

Fair value of securitiesaccepted as collateral 112,607,726 99,163,038

Of which fair value of securities re-pledgedftransferred to others 95,909,856 83,105,017

34. Capital management

The below table provides details of the regulatory capital resources managed by the Company.

Common Equity Tier 1 capital instruments 925,273 1,070,362
Common Equity Tier 1 deductions (69,615) (53,426)
Common Equity Tier 1capital 855,658 1,016,936
Additional Tier 1 capital 200,000 56,379
Tier 1 capital 1,055,658 1,073,315
Tier 2 capital 308,260 209,105
Total Own Funds 1,363,918 1,282,420

To meet regulatoryprovisions by the PRA affecting capital adequacy and large exposuresreporting, the Company has
the followingin place as at 31 December 2019:

- Acontractual guarantee of £1bn (2018: £2.5bn) from Bardays Bank Plc to cover credit exposures arising from
Counterparty Credit Risk. The guarantee covers large exposures which are in excess of 23% of the company’s
eligible capital relevant for limits to large exposures. This guarantee will remain in effect until terminated by
either the beneficiary or the guarantor by providing 30 business days’ notice in writing to the other party.

- A contractual guarantee from Bardays Bank Plc to cover credit exposures arising from Counterparty Credit risk
ranked by risk weighted amount. The guarantee limit is set to £1and can be amended from time to time with
agreementbetween both parties. This guarantee will remain in effect until terminated either by the beneficiary
or guarantor by providing 30 business days’ notice in writing to the other party. The guarantee limit had been
increased to£500mon 3 March 2020and subsequentlyto £1.5bn and £2.0bn on 17 March 2020 and 31 March 2020
respectively.

- A contractual guarantee from Bardays Bank Plc to cover securities financing transactions to Non-Core intema
large exposures which are in excess of the company’s eligible capital relevant for limits to large exposures in
accordance with Article 4(1)(71) (b) and Article 494 of the CRR. The guarantee limit is set to £1 and can be
amended from time to time with agreement from both parties. The main exposures to which this guarantee
relates to are Barclays Capital Inc., Barclays Securities Japan Limited and Barclays Bank Ireland Plc. Barclays Bank
Plc may terminatethis guarantee at any time by providing 30 business days’ notice in writing.

- A contractual guarantee of £1.5bn from Barclays Bank Plc to cover exposure with Barclays Capital Luxembourg
Sarl for stock loan transactions. Barclays Bank Plc may terminate this guarantee at any time by providing 30
business days’ notice in writing,

The above guarantee limitamounts can be amendedfrom time to time with agreementbetween both parties.
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- Floating rate perpetual subordinated write down securities (AT1 securities) issued for £200m on 22 August 2019,

which are included within additional Tier 1 capital;

- Asubordinated loan agreement with Barclays Bank Plc comprising debt of €17m and US$24.5m, whichare included

within Tier 2 capital.

- Subordinated callable notes of £150m issuedon 22 August 2019 and £150missued on 19 December 2019, whichare

included within Tier 2 capital.

35. Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant

influence over the party in making financial or operational decisions, or one party controls both.

The definition of related partiesincludes parent company, ultimate parentcompany, subsidiary, associated and joint
venture companies, as well as the Company’s key management which includes its Directors. Particulars of
transactions, and the balances outstandingat the yearend, are disclosedin the tables below. The Company’srelated
party transactions disclosed on the tables below are with the branches and subsidiaries of Barclays Bank Plc

Statement of Comprehensive Incomefor the

Branches Subsidiaries Total
year ended 31December 2019 -
Net interest income/(expense) (2,897) - (2,897)
Net fee and commission income/(expense) (83,898) - (83,898)
Net trading Income (204,731) 415 (204,316)
Operating expense (219,344) (952) (220,296)
Impairment 103 - 103
Total Comprehensive Income (510,767) (537) (511,304)
Statement of Financial Position as at Branches Subsidiaries Total
31 December 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 114,673 - 114,673
Derivative financial instruments 5,445,474 48,181 5,493,655
Loans and other receivables 24,264,930 4,224,456 28,489,386
Other assets 105 - 105
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 19,960,191 8,252,614 28,212,805
Investmentin subsidiaries - - -
Total Assets 49,785,373 12,525,251 62,310,624
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments (6,623,696) (237,372) (6,861,068)
Repurchase agreements - (7,522,208) (7,522,208)
Borrowings (18,459,359) (4,060,310) (22,519,669)
Other liabilities (93,521) (1,484) (95,005)
Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair value (28,700,947) (8,840,323) (37,541,270)
Total Liabilities (53,877,523) (20,661,697) (74,539,220)
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Statement of Comprehensive Incomefor the year

ended 31December 2018 Branches Subsidiaries Total
Net interest income/(expense) (1,000) - (1,000)
Net fee and commission income/f(expense) (73,653) 31 (73,622)
Net trading Income (132,016) 49 (131,967)
Operating expense (207,363) (21,112) (228,475)
Impairment (101) - (101)
Total Comprehensive Income (414,133) (21,032) (435,165)
Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2018 Branches Subsidiaries Total
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 16,170 - 16,170
Derivative financial instruments 6,799,961 45 6,800,006
Loans and other receivables 17,552,202 10,511,369 28,063,571
Other assets 136 91 227
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 17,626,887 8,528,461 26,155,348
Investmentin subsidiaries - - -
Total Assets 41,995,356 19,039,966 61,035,322
Liabilities ‘

Derivative financial instruments (7,217,835) (420) (7,218,255)
Repurchase agreements - (7,028,049) (7,028,049)
Borrowings (9,885,689) (10,266,407) (20,152,096)
Other liabilities (46,208) - (46,208)
Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair value (18,480,781) (8,762,702) (27,243,483)
Total Liabilities (35,630,513) (26,057,578) (61,688,091)

Principal transactionsincomefrom related party transactionsis not disclosed above as the Company’s activities are
managed on a portfolio basis comprising of related party, external client and hedgingtransactions. '

Barclays Bank Plc has provided to alimited number of third parties, guarantees on the performance of the Company
inrelation to obligations.associated with prime brokerage and stock lending business activities.

Refer Note 8 for details on remuneration of Key Management Personnel.
36. Legal and regulatory matters

The financial reporting of legal and regulatory challenges involves a significant degree of judgement and is complex.
Identifying whether a present obligation exists and estimating the probability, timing, nature and quantum of the
outflows that may arise from past events requires judgements to be made based on the specific facts and
circumstancesrelating to individual events and often requires specialist professional advice. When mattersare at an
early stage, accounting judgements and estimates can be difficult because of the highdegree of uncertainty involved.
Management continues to monitor matters as they develop to re-evaluate on an ongoing basis whether provisions
should be recognised, howeverthere can remain awide range of possible outcomes and uncertainties, particularly in
relation to legal, competition and regulatory matters, and as aresult it is often not practicable to make meaningful
estimates even when matters are at a more advanced stage. The Company has not disclosed an estimate of the
potential financial effect of contingent liabilities whereit is not currently practicable to do so.
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37. Contingentsand commitments

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events, and
present obligations wherethe transfer of economicresourcesis uncertain or cannot bereliablymeasured. Contingent
liabilities are not recognised on the balance sheet but are disclosed unless the outflow of economic resources is
remote.

The following table summarises the nominal principal amount of contingent liabilities and commitments which are
not recorded onbalance sheet.
2019 2018

Financial guarantelesa ) : - -
Undrawn commitments 98,585 63,984

Undrawn Commitments for the year include aCommitted Margin Agreement with Prime Brokerage clients for £99m
(2018: £16m) and Forward Starting Repurchase agreements of £Nil (2018: £48m). Apart from thisthe Company is also
part of aDoLSub agreement with Barclays Bank Pic which may give rise to contingentliabilities albeit not quantifiable.

22018 figures restated by exclusion of €500m guarantee provided on behalf of Barclays Bank Plc to reflecttermination of the
guarantee during 2018.

38. Parent undertaking and ultimate holding company

The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of Barclays Plc, which is the ultimate parent companyincorporated in the
United Kingdom, which is also the ultimate controlling party.

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Barclays Plc. The smallest

group in which they are consolidated is that headed by Barclays Bank Plc. Both companies are incorporated in the
United Kingdom and registeredin England.

The consolidated financial statements of these groups are available to the publicfrom Barclays Corporate Secretariat,
1 Churchill Place London E14 5HP. This information is available at: https://home.barclays/investor-relations/reports

and-events/annual-reports/

39. Eventsafter the Balance SheetDate

The contractual guarantee from Bardays Bank Plc to the Company which covers credit exposures arising from
CounterpartyCredit risk ranked by risk weighted amount, with alimit of £1 as of 31 December 2019 had been increased to
£500m on 3 March 2020 and subsequently to £1.5bn and £2.0bn on 17 March 2020 and 31 March 2020 respectively. Refer
Note 34 for further details.

The Company is monitoring the potential downside risk associated with both the direct and indirectimpact of the COVID-
19 outbreak. The Company continues to operate within its risk and capital limits which are being actively monitored by
management. :

On 11 March 2020 itwas announced (and substantively enacted on 17 March 2020) that the UK corporation tax rate would
remain at 19% and not reduce to 17% (the previously enacted rate ) from 1 April 2020. The deferred tax balancesincluded
within the accounts have been calculated withreference to the rate of 17%, as required under I FRS. However, following
the substantive enactment ofthe rate of 19%, it is anticipated that the reversal of temporary differences will occur at this
rate and that the maximumimpacton the quantum of net deferred taxliability recognised is assessed to be immaterial.

There are no other material events after 31 December 2019 and before adoption of the financial statements which need
tobe disclosed in the financial statements.
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